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2024 nouwa 31 (na Lol dale Olagloa

(dolc arigny da@la a4nb) 1170
(&bl yulaa yuy)) cpebwll a000 @uwly apwll _ :
(&ylayl gulaa gy uili) calall (i jlive 2o sl aspidl gc duwlwl Slaglea
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(v-@.yb) Guéall galbal Gujaull &4pb
2024 nauwa 31 na dugiiall aiwull 6jlall gulaa pyai

@ All (nadalwall éaludl Oipaa

@281 Of guipuw ,(Oalhall) .o.@.gb Guéall galbal Gopul &4nb 8)la] gulaa gc dyli
2024 nauys 31 (na daagiiall adlall diwldl &jlaMl gulaa j i @4l

aanidl elai

Lgayli (ua Uleua Alial el Juowiy Liagli [jLail a4pidl ceaas ,2023 @le gra
claill (na wdbll 3 & jlailwl o el (nle . Ggull (na wdbll 6alyj Jhas ¢l ag
aAnpidl Cgalg LaA .alell JUs 1% arwiy Layab Lblasil agab ai M| ,2024 alc (na
eonisa JLodyl & ajull ol 2ag . adlbll v lIAs glayl gc &aali &ylya s il
é3lyj (na déyagana g a Lgl b baoll dinbhall aay (ndl @aldl , qawilfwll galball

Al aalbll

JAayadll auinill aull (ea Lishlac aalaiwl (nde bLasll aygpd Oljlaiiwlll od & pioj
laa aul w alie i ailii e Opa wig lgiwil Glaai saluj ndl Lasi i Lgillg
g-@g,2024 yujla (na 3g220 guwgi go dinhall a1d) cgpira P cLgiilll @ig .alell
egnivall 13 31415 @ g ,Llagy (nald| (pjia gb 100 jladay apaliiyll adlibll alj jyly jLail
laa elai] gl .bhall gl (na Olaiiall pagi wnle pili gi aygill (na glbail ol gga
@lpb] cai, (pabgallg &)lall @ljill gude) aliidl Slulac pw e bLasll g o Jaell

.Uolball a45nb 8)la] gulaa

albi o JLaiill Jua o el oll ayai Euani gra Lbgala Laadi & spidl Ciadn Lad
claclll o pus Jhaiy Jlé Lao ,82922ll @ 4igfislyl g)laill & nia (] @adéll @ilwall
Gawll gc asglball OLilull @ an (uiing ,Mlaleall clya] alac Jgwg Lifllac (nle
@¢) @hiwall g aillg jl4 il & spidl @ljiill (le cg pll aggall 03 @ bl wi.plaall

L&yl 8yg 430l & yllall lyanill

bl @lell (na gupay )liva 432,791 0jaé oy (nalo galball Gaan , @le Jaaiy

diwll dragaell dreaall a dlill SlLupgill )b\l gulaa @aé ,ddadnall ailiill (nle 2Ling

:2024 na wys 31 (na augiiall

JLall yuij 0 25% gi) @gw J41 Luwla 25 Ja o) (padluwall & jagi byl @ sjgi - *
iy )L 620,620 cg-a2ay (cg-aaall

Aupallg drclaiall Jlacill gupy jlisa 25,000 glia (punai o

6jhMl julaa a6

2024 alall Jua aspidl Sljlail e joga

10



13

gliialg yauib

Graell piliial e el (padlwallg &)Yl yulaa clirel geg yic dylii @Lliall (pag
Ozl dAlaa ella daals Jiquae (o aan elall @ldall unlb 8pan @laal (npiadig
wili agell (ndg aauls Ji aas o glalw paill (nAlall ga wll sl 8pang ,(nadall

.@-gacag @giaiag sa il @ gislié wnle pdgall chjgll gulaa guy) cnlelll ajlall

Olligdl cia aljlayl clwgyg gapaallg clag lig chjg Ul jA il @a aii i ag—i La4
Jaiwall @ gacag @gigleig datball @ gilgingi wnle aAlaally dragiall Slunugallg

Gu1a J1d g (uilaillg alall Jaell ggay Lidaa g4y U a4nidl alai of @4l 248 Lad
@-guilai inlec a Spill (pabga g 1aal gliiellg paaillg Aaidl Jojoy @adiig . Jaell
2024 @alel ai4aall aliliill Jral glang jLaill 0a gl (nai (nall alall @ glacg

0aa (i Jo aai (nle (Jaig paiallg @jilall Gjall Ia @ Jio agags gg-bghaa (pai
«a5null Oldacg OMLaa @ 1ad pc annaiall @ giljlga pighig J-apg Lgrabga (na
Juaiwall (na a3l jlgai (nlgil @ ai0) Laa

Sabj ] cnewi Allj Lag , dippdl (na alle wowi 63 c Glgiwlg Gagib (galhall a4nbg
@-gixdaig ayibglljalg Al jyjoi) Lialjill 2411 (rgall pghill oy a pag ig dywill Ly
aajllll OljLgallg dayaall Linabga agji yill , dlalAiall pghillg wgyaill aalp JUs g

“lgialaiwlg aAnil gai (ia dlleall aadluallg Jlacill clai (na paill Gudail

:aalysitmall yaillg aanidl Olgags

) (el JUa go b gail gulwill galball & Spi Geng |, Jidiwall (] p bilhg
6)2d @ 0 6311 g wlgng dinha cl iyl d nniall ,d-aulh clita o wpall auilfiwl
Uolball & 4pb a39) @0 ag-abll cgpitall 13 @ (nblaiy .dilwaa a 1ijaig ayaliil
alwlhy glang duuall LitAlaal (nilasll Golll (na déadlwall gl dAlaa @agiag

Juaiwall (na dalaiwag éjéi wa alaal

dagiall Ol gallg & alnall ulani @ 1ad g o Grwiill golhall & Spib Jaei, Lyl
RSl g o b shaill & loje s oill copiiall Jghll s all unle &3l 04 @ & sl
G1anil alnll Wla aagiall Uljljgdl g o Jgleillg 3jlgallg Ol dalgall (ol (nlc
fillg 8 1l & 4yl o1l aulyat woll & il 03,0 2835 910l SaLsall 03
nuleall (nlell JLiialll Lialjill 248 La4 .auibgll Oliglglll @ ca iia unygaall Laygag
a_abhil pe 6agall G uhig ,a sl & abiillg @ Al Olwluw 3 1aiig ;& aigall (na

A4null (na éaMwllg G anll

:auclaisil algguall

alggually (ngéll liwlwa| ga lahil .aya ginei (pall gainall @ e anle Lishglgl j4yi
jLis2 15,000 @ Lia @uadis & yalall & spall & wwgall g a & 4nidl Cuigles ,é sclainll
asnidl Jolgi ,ella (] aldil @Al glha) g JUls aslinall pulll @ cal (g
Fpal aruidl Shlleall ga ajaoll dley Lgia dcgiia ljalia JUA ga gainall @ca
@call a4pill paa (e lhuei cllag avlall Glalindl (ngd golaabill yasall J5aill alle

.20gill Juleall wluibllg JLabill @ aadall Glaaallg

aulle j4p0 ingdal Guaall Olaiia @uaail angll inclll Lgighs Léyi galbhall paai Lol
2laill JA @ gl (niaia (aule (b L)
.2024 qalel dgidaall ailill Jaal glavg jlaill oagl wnal nall alall @glacg
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:aanaiill 8jlaMl Olal4da Juolai :Lili

ey ot | cistsattconsa | itaiconce syl
2024 (bonus) écgaaall acga **;-' ig (g jLisa)
guaaidll go Glalda aiw nlel
511,125 12,320 102,277 396,528 wnagaiill guill @gua Lay
wlell (llall Jgawallg
:ayal wlalda
(20g gl) dyliziwllg dylaillg aiall Jlacill e slaldall - 3an0 @lia - avizell Lljall Jas *
(Uaag ) (@asall Jaal) anginall @guwill - Ayl (a &)lalll gulaa gihc dnn Jadi **
JLua 15,648 ojaig cgann né eliay aanill dlgi slalda jania garis ¥+
:Ilbgala
il a)li (na Lad a4nidl (na Jgabge @ (o Juiuaii cljaa diw wlcll ga alnalll .1
wulAll onyliika qllo wncbwll 2020 @b
&)1yl yulaa guuiy il &)1l yulaa gu)

2025 plpa 25

Laouy , @lill lisa@lwae ga aala il Olaya andl iule bLaall a4nidl @ljill (o cjadg
aullall aiwll &aaiill 8jladlg &ylall gulaa cliacl Olalda a g (nall oLiaf Jgaall glayl
:2024 paus 31 (na ddiiall

:8)1aMl gulaa cliaci Olalda Juolai :Mgi

@l

énpaiall Glalaall auldl Sialsall i)

1

(Olagpoall Jay Jauinl)
daaill awlgi 6lalsa

(nlaimall cliacill gl

20,308 20,308 9,900 | 10,408 nchwll aana @uly 1
14,101 14,101 8,900 5,201 culéllaonan plln .2
11,201 1,201 6,000 5,201 Jij aaallac gaji 3
13,401 13,401 8,200 5,201 i lpyall 4
15,201 15,201 10,000 | 5,201 @uwld allb glag) .5

:onldiwa pall / guisaii poll cbaelll Ll

12,701 12,701 7,500 | 5201 J@ja 200l .6
9,701 9,701 4,500 | 5201 wiliol Jilg 7
13,201 13,201 8,000 | 5201 aalaall aga 8

il clacil L
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J.@.gb Guball galhal Gapadl d4pi
1170-1 :(nyaill Jauwll @dy
2024 nauwa 31 na dugiiall dallall diwdl Jc 6asgall pujai

d.a4gn glira tnaluay w.@.gb Guéall galbal gapdl a i @ljill pyaill 13 & o gy
CBB") aalall aslayll Julag laillg &clinll 8)lig (c jalnll (“éasgall Glira") cil4nill
;anisspall gl wépoa (e jalnll aclgall GLia (oo gualwdl alaall (na ("Module HC

a4nilly goLall Slapidl &adga Jula a] aalsill

@lc JILa Olapill da4ga Gliza Jladiwl Laalail @i gidl Slelyayl gl .1
Lgaubhi da 1ai4g ,2024

Olwluwllg Slelpall Juda Ganig dealpa (nyga JAin @iy S, SlSpill da4gay

Laag aic aasiall glalllg jlall yulaal daayhiill ailglllg Slapill &adgay gl all

00 U4 ululbial

JI6 wagay doliwllg §)laillg & clinll jljg o< jalnll SlSpill & asgs Gliva
2018 yujla 19 A yjliv ,2018 &iwl (19) @4y

jaLinll a_clgall ULi4 (o 6 3 lhall (na (“CBB Module HC”) aalell alall Jula
alell @ JILa &uani wiiphy @l alif U] .ajApall gupdl éppa (g c

JLa a4nill @gwi na @ aglivig @-galgjig 8jlall gulaa claci Silalei glu .
:qdlill Jgaall Laag 2024 alell

g/qgi 8)laMl yulaa clrel J1é (o aspidl @gwi gna 435 Oilaloj ayi elllia g4 @l
.@agliig @ galgji

aalgall pjai

Ol Galaa na aspidl Oljlail



:3)1bMl gulaa Jrbani .1 :3)bMl yulaa Jrlaii .3
repllill Jgaall laag pllall §)ladll yulaa Jubais gly (i

Juasaii pé cliaci @a §jlall yulao cliaci gpan * 8ylal gulaa & 4nill &)la] wlgiy Of wile &4nill qwlwill @Lbill o 24 éaLall o i
:351a11 gulan Sllggwa (w nawys 31 ale (nag .1gnce pitc dwed (e aj Ug cliael dwas e @daac Ja Ul

ayilai aspill )lal gulaa (na uaiiall / (niaeall claclll aa e (nllasl gla, 2024
:claci

2018 @leal UlApidl & alga (g-la gra Lgule ppg niall ¢l li (na §jlaMl yu laa @lga

L (“CBB Module HC") a_aleall aslagl Julag gupul a Alaal a ylaill Slapill gg-ils

aac (i aalsul g bpall gl @pa (e jalnll 2 clgall wLis oo gualuldl 3 laall

e, ailplnisd Laag sjlail gulaa Glualg Jaai .aspill qwlwill @lbillg guiwiill

:paa iy JLiall Juw

lglac ahag lgiuayilfiwlg a4nidl clai enle w@lpibdl

aspidll (pllall japall e aday anaf Gill adlall Slilyl alacl ga 240

allnall jla Julai Jai g aalell <ila wlpbill g a Oileleall @ubiil ali gbg
aaloll Ula wlpbill @ a d&1a weill Wil aleall g ing

dloill aha wnle wlpblll go Guasdiill (nlggualljbs Jlakiwl g @udig guai  *

allnall @ a quewipll &)1all gulha el aclg (poasaiill gapaall OLal4a & aclga
(nadlwallg & Spinll J ol & Lgb

a_aalpall ¢Lls (na Lay , aspill adlall  ylaillg & wlhall & abil aallw glas
Jblaall §)lal & abil layw g ,Lgilda (na arwliall aslayl @ abii gig , alaiwall
alnll Ola poleallg gglall JLiialg, aie iiillg & dlall alallg

naalwall go adaill ¢l (na lay , padlwall dlsloll dloaloall glan — *

lgalaal Guanig aspidl Jlac clab abuipall axisiiillg adlall Slwluwll slaicl

lgiliasili wlg lgil whivg & Spidl b bAal & ygall G ealjallg wlpiblllg b bAill
aruyill Lgalaaig

alaiclg & ylall @l aillg Slhawliwlg & 4pidl Jialll JLall gul) J4 1@ 1gani -
agiwll SLiilpell

.UloUnll agan jaigaig ablull aagana alaiclg aoalja °

eg—iill

il @
3 ®

gulaall Olaalga wlhii Gill auwlwill Silaleall glgil (S
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encluwll aasae @uwl auull

2023-3_1.0 |.... /L_p'__""n_é

)Ml yulaa gu)
daigallg UlalAallg Olaubyill dial guud)

gy)litallg Sbpuiall dial guu)y uili

sl guAdLwil @ Apb guwgag  lpi
1997 @lc 3ina @gialil

a154ilAsall @ waigll (na yugyygllay alg 1
83 niall OL_lgll ob_wgr & aol ¢
a4y palll

U=l claé aspb - gl yulra gu i
a_rylall

ylaell @ihiill diya - §)l] yulaa gac
(ndaji - §)lal yulaa girc

alajal g Al & 5pb - §yla] gulaa guy il
(g4n)la) @g-sialill

ojLai aay ¢ - ayuaiill )il gulra g ae
=2l & cling

@941l @4 dcgaaa - §lal yulaa giac
Ugatgy a4nb - §)la] yulaa giacg @le paa
Gl

aiull G 2asgall i
31 wna daugiiall adlall
2024 nauuns
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Jigj axaallase Gagi auwll

2017.3_1.0 |.... /k__!'\'“""n_é

)Ml yulaa giac
jblaallg @ljilillg Guaaill dial guy)y il

<
<

snall

Lo &4 - & yylaill gggsill (na paiill gu iyl
(QUl Gin 2017) gl

ol JLaall (na La'le 23 g 2 i ép5 aal
sl ggleill gulaa Jga na pllallg
] 2012 (o (Real Capital) - (paaiill guipll
.2015

& ylaMllg a yllall ggginll yu ) JLack @ lall
O—padla aye-gnapaiill gu il L e -
O], 2012120100 OLcjliall digwil
2005 g pghill glac d4pb 8)la] yulaa grac
.Olac ,2007 (|

& yaiill & ibldl & _Anb §)la] yulra gu )
,2007 ndl 2004 o & vlall jlaii_willg
.Ol_ac

1996 ()—a BAE SYSTEMS - }_igua4 Jua_iga
41410l 8a_aiall Gl gl , 2000 (]

<

<

<

<

Sl@gall

Jiwwg & <als g—a Jlaci §jla] piwala
83 aiall llgl ,gaitlgi , JLacill & 14
& 1Aaalll

d2aly g0 wgwhll@g lc (pna yugygllsy
Ollgll, & waigll a4, & pgiall laygla
.a1430lll 82 iall

<

<

wai Olapb & (né @gavliag @giligic

- - aylaill g8l pa- il gu il
(QUl cna 2017) gl )L ba

<

wulSll aana gllo auwll

2015.:-.Lo l.... /L._'n."..“J:!_é

&)\l yulaa gy il <
gyjlikallg Ohyjidiall aial guwy <€
daigallg UlalAallg Olaubyill dial grhe ¢

énall
awaigll Jlaa (na Lale 40 (o fisl 6pa clliay
&)l yullaag arauilsyall

Oil@gall
a8 uilAall awaigll gugygllsy

wpi Slapb &i (na egupliag @gibigic

U-olha & 5nb - Gluwll )bl yulra gu i) <
aigall jlaallg Gaaall

Coghll iy - gl gulaa gu gy il €
wc linl|

gaill aughll d5nb - 8jlalll yulaa yuy <
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Jowllare allo glagy dwilll

2020.3-.LQ |.... /k__p'“""n_é

)Ml yulaa giae ¢
jblaallg @ljilillg Guaaill dial ghe ¢
oylitallg Obfiall dinl gac ¢

anall

é_aloll & dlall (na Lale (afidisna el liai ¢
Aulpily billg Olwluull g ing 8)lallig

Sl oMl & whuw } 30 - nia Ll Jo iy <€
Jibgll al_nialllg & ylall 8)ljg_s & alall

OUagall

Aix-Marseille (na a aloll 8jlaMll (pa pilwala ¢
U=l 2 goag gl & 2ala @ a ggleilh
.Aalell §jlaul

aulalll aoalall g d4llag &wlia yugyglly <

Ol -

Wi Olapb & (na egupliag @gibigiac
Olalallg Slwluull (paaiill gu gl ool <
Ohalpll (abg I jlgall - a gqlall

Qya Ly abl asull

2020110 I.... /L--n."....Jl-‘.:

g)lbMl yulha gac ¢
sblaallg @ljilillg Guraaill Gial guy) <
daigallg UlalAallg Olaubyill dial grhae ¢

énall

Wma gra Jugaillg Sljlaiiwll j ja0s J ooy <
Jgill aalbll
wal Laayal Jla g b wglll gpil @g will
. lgall guAL w gloalga

J1aas yiviyd Jopo 14 yol agi ey (nll @ hil <
.ag-wi

(plgatl o uall el i G ill ,2004 @lc (pa <
;2230 wenia (] néy 5 @ glaiill J1aal
Ll alc

L wlha4 2001 alc dugalll gugill (na Jac ¢
.JLacijghag

Olagall

U—a JLaclll §jla] (na (INSEAD MBA) pi_wala <
Luiya

d<aal> o arwlall (pa @g-leoll yuggllsy ¢
.a140ill 3 aiall Glplgll Ly

wyal Olapb & (nd @guoliag @giligac

a gyl wall @ ey gu i) - dopb €
L1yal Jlaivg b wgll Gis I 4o
Roland Berger - (—pull v i4a gu1jj /
Middle East Bahrain

Ol claé abpb - §)lal gulaa gric €
5 Ll |
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enilise aaai Jilg apwll

(2023110) I.... J:]._é/q].“..nj:]-_é

)b\l yulaa giae ¢
daigallg UlalAallg Olaubyill dial gae ¢

spall

.a4jall doypw axdlgiwill glwll dclin (pa Lale 31 <

Jab Jaw gag . gjgall §)la] 33g-ai (na g niia ¢
w2 gll gai @ gagall ayjlaill Slalellpighigna
JUA o elgiwall enl e j4p gill Oleyall 8aljg
Jillg éalisa dralpen G blia pc «adaoll» §)lalll
b wglll gnill , (paulall ggleill gulaa Jga Jais
aigllg Liayjaig

4 Jigwy Jg aal aSpid Jlaclllpyacs Jac ¢
Luayal g b _wgill gnicll - (EPC)

aylalljilapl & Spid (nylaillpaalldlalw Jac ¢
Lidyaig b wglll Gnic1l-

JLual a4nb Gubl cgnita Gpa ailad Jac ¢
Liayal Jlab - g-Sbgi

asllgwll Ol uiggslyl pigw a Spi laglw Gbi <
gy wiba guipig alddl i

@Lc cna (P&G) Jrald gl jidgp & Spb cnll @ nil <
OLaiill loual (na 1aiiy 1041993

Oil@gall
b wll sl niail) & dgall gggill (pa piwsla ¢
-1998) gLidl ;& 15palll & wilinlll & calall, ((plgal
.(2000
8 aloll §lalllg &1 whuwll @g_loll cpna yugygllsy <
(1993 -1990) gLiwl , igny na a14ualll & oalall

wpsill Sl4pidl (nd ubliallg Sbghell

d Alaa - dalell galgall a Spid (pasaidll gu Ll ¢
- amylall gl cla ¢ a Spid (paaiill gu gl <€

}@ja aani auwll
(2022 pgiAi Aia) Jdiwa pé / (naraii né

)b\l yulaa gire ¢
daigallg Wlalsallg Slawbgill il guydy Wil €

Jblaallg aljilillg usaill dial gic <

onall

Jlaogaépallgalalel5gaisiclliag ¢
A4aiig 1 y)gi na Jab Ja w e o & plall g will
(—a & _cgiia & cgana nc b alaall SGlapy §)lalg
Lwayal Jlaubg b wglll Gnidll ddbhia (na Olclinll
Luayaig bwi gnb wg-ing

wa iiall g Aoll gl4 ,UlA_liaa (]l aalanil J 1a ¢
Jo (HFP) jagh guAlapa yug o & Spil
B __alaall §jlalg 62 yaall Wljlaii wil (nl_c wpbi
Lidyal wg ind dhial

dcgaaal & gl salcll Crdga guyips Leyi Jac ¢
danlgg HFP &4pid é oulid hana &a4pi g ,AFGRI
Liayal ugin (na aeljll Sloaall Slspb psigo

00— 2ol (pa & alira e plia Loy Joib <
Fairfax g Abraaj Group J—ia & udgall Ol abiall
Emerging Capital Partners g Africa Holdings

lagall
JLlaclll éalyg Jagaill (na Jlaclll §jla] piiwsla ¢
.UgJ)lg & wjra ,Lilal wiy & oaly ga

U0 aibygAll G waigll (pa quai @ yugygllsy <
Luaglgisill Linygn 2 goa

wpill Slapidl (nd wbliallg Shghaell

i @l will Ollaiiwill - (pa_aiill p jaall €
.Gl ,(BMHC) arulall gl Ol4 liaa & Apb
Libuwl , cuuli degana - gjla] gulaa guyi)

Gl (Gl dAnb) Cu oy - §)lal yulaa gac
G2l g+ ggu dcgaaa - §lal yulrag e
.@.3 aaylall gu Aiicla @lp - 8)al yulaa g ac
Ll wi , (g-oup)
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4aslhall aana aga aull
2023 aia Jdiwa pé / (naraii pé

)Ml yulaa giae ¢
oujlitallg Ol dial grac ¢

anall

- ailalpllg & 1agiall gggill y 1304 J 0oy <
arlall gl Ol4_lina & 4ni

nAaai - augilall gjlall paa wnia Jaub €

@oill 63g 2 aia - JLnjl acl wald Jac ¢
wi)aillg

Oil@gall

doaly go gylaill gg-lall (pa piwala ¢
=2l (pa aaubill ag loll

dgapll doals ga ggHlall (na yugyygllay €
0L

wpdill Olapidl (nd upbliallg Sbghasll

aAnb - & 4ilalpllg & ragiall yggidl jyaa <
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Ulw g0 2024 aullall aiawll JUs Sade Gill §jlal] gulaa Olelaialaac (o

wipall JLnidl Jilwg Gupb g—< gi umaiill jgaall Olpa a3 cg , Lanlaeil 3y)lgi
.allagll guplall clacil jlu ga clécill g 1aal

8y1aMl yulan @guwy olial Jglaall angi

27 (na dadc dillg, 2024 alc (na Slclainl & was a cgana La gulaalla e
Jg—ll Ol clain] 52 dc @ .pawys 8 g naagi 12, gub wei13 ,gula 12 ,pulpa

renls Loy gl (O
.2023 q@lall (jc dacgaaall 8l gulaa clivrci Oialda dlas .1

augiiall adllall aiwll (e a4pidl 8)lal gulaa cliaell & egaaall OlalAall (nllaa] @ by
.Jupy jLiua 60,000 ojadg (nllan] @ e 2023 pauya 31 (na

@idw gillg 2024 @l all < dajidall §jlaMl gulaa cliaci Gialbda dlaa .2

;e |
(Ulelaial 5) wichull a0a0 @wl 2wl
(Olelaial 5) wuldll 2010 allo Al
(Olclainl 4) Jigj aaallare Gl awll
(Ulelaial 5) danlpall aga auwll
(Ulelainl 5) Qa5 bl Al

(Olelaial 5) Jowllae allo lagy auwsll

(Olclaial 4) J@ja 2aai auull
(Olelainl 5) wilize 2aal Jilg apwll

£l agiuaidll 6)lall Lgs Oald (fill §jlalll gudaa Ololniilg @lga gl (2
.Jaagaill anllpg 63 a0 ayaai @ a §jlaMl (] gulaall o yaigai wnle

JUs ayasaiill a)ladl () jlaMl gulaa Lgnhga Oloblnislg @lga dayi elia (47 @l
.2024 alc

(adlnall ulawi) asiall O3 wlpbill ga Saj yill Gilaleill Juplais glu (3
Jolaill gg-ig & &ilall & aub a1bgi ga

bkl g (25) @by alewll (na aallell (nga wlpbill g o Wllalaall Juplai gjaa
.2024 no uys 31 augiiall aiwll d adaall a dlall

.Lgilc é dalnall (ngiwll dalell &acaall gclaial (na Lgdyc

uulan] @ ia 2024 @aleall ()< a4pidl §)la] gulral & afidnll OLaldall (nllaa] & Ly
(naabwall & dalgal 8LalAall 0a & @ HATg .gupy jLiua 46,815 ojadg

uillg adic adiiiall glalllg éjlall gulaa Slaula jgasaa OYay Jawlais glu .3
Jgaall Laag 2024 aloll & slall il g—c jladl gulaa cliaci Lalslas

:en Ll

:8)1al gulaa @guwy olial Jglaall angi

(2026-2023) ylaMll yulaa

aic adiviall glallg &jla¥l yulaa Shwls jgin Siay gpllaal
@wl
*(.2) Jall Gagd olalllg &jlayl gulaa
8)1aMl gulaa
9,900 da4gallg UlalAallg Glawiyill ial welwll aana @b auwll 1
eyjliiallg Obfidiall &ial
8)1aMl gulaa
8,900 gyjlitallg Obfidiall &ial wlAll aana Qllo apwll 2
daa4gallg UlalAallg Glawiyill ial
81\l yulaa . N
6,000 Jblaallg @lililg Gudaill aial Jiyj areallage goylapull 3
8)1aMl gulaa
8,200 sblhallg @ljillllg Guaaill dial 244 by ab] apwll 4
daa4gallg WlalAallg Glawiyill ial
&byl yulaa -
10,000 jblallg lillg udaill il alodba el 1 g
ayyliitallg Ol &inl Jouwyllae
&\l yulaa
7,500 aaAgallg wialdallg Olaiyill aial J@ja aani auwll 6
Jolaallg il @l aiad
&jlayll yulaa R . 7
8,000 oylisallg abj’ﬁ.m“ ) 4almall 1ga auull
S)1aM1 gulra -
4,500 andgallg wialsallg chji:ﬁ)fﬂl aial wilize 200l Jilg apuull 11 8
63,000 £9—=aaall

Jgall Juplai wnle Jgoall oliai 7g 6 g 5 g o @uall (ll ggapll cnop *
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wilgyl elds (nea Lay) Guewaigdl Guaaaiill (nlgguwell @ cgaaall Glaldall (nilasl
SLilll go (25) aleyill il egopll cnap fupay jLiga 511,125 g (a2l Liljallg
Jlaill (nle Jgnall 2024 na wys 31 (ra dgiiall diwll @ ddaall & dlall

senoylall Oblwall géao .

.uigall ailaig (padbwall a4pidl Sblwa Gdaa Je 834 @iadi (i

JLacill  blaag wiilpallg SljLisiwillg Guéaill Slaas Ernst & Young &4ni @aaji

]lall cLaif @ 103 (a (apinl JLall gui) Sloaasg dialll y blaallg Liaglgiillg
apall Jilgi il ,npddl @ il & wlhall l4pi (naal (g L& 4nidl 3yl ag-<)
(nilnaiall Lagyisni i)l Gugli ndupalllg @ igs pji (pailid wll guwi . gapioll
@gllg 1989 @l c (ra gLispidl canail .onligill (nlc 19039 1906 (palc (pa

.a1g3 150 (Ja il (na Jaaig goa 1l 200,000 (o ASl & Apidl @ bgi

allall Oilagleall & 92l 2410 @d) & aaljall (nlgall jLioall Laag & aaliall @ ii

adlall Olagleanll & 9alpa Janii."duwgall (¢ Jailwa Géaa Jué Ja aulryall

jgalll e (plgiwall (pa bgall (] quwlwi JAiiy Sljlwaiwl aiagi aile dulayall

aanlpall glhi gl .unpai dealpa Ulelpalg @iy d ealpa clpalg auwlaallg alall
adlgall guaill plao wows alac @l all Guaaill gL G iy Jol g0

G-d20 Lgaad will Olaaall gi Gabaill a olall v Wl4illg uloiill glu (v
Lalaa Gl Olgiwll aa ey gly ol dals] ,2023 alall Jib guaylall SlLuwall
:ondlill Jgaall wawn cllag .abpill (payldy Sblius G-Gaab

+undal 2y (niilillg Jgill @nll Jaaiy Suny aApill pLall anashiill Jaagll (a
cljaallg @leall paall wilig (naaiill gu iyl gi/g @leall jyaall Jaiiy gi wnle

[ [ [ |
sl @eall i Slidaall il Sl il eliiily guailaial |
ayjlaill gyjliiallg dalgnllg Uialdallg jblaallg
wnasaiill paall
-aylallggganll PR R r———————— )
aylatll gulaa piyaw
sblaall Jgi paa
\

@igig Cuwij| Guiaill wiso ouwl
aiw 2 ObLwa §-63a8 wiball Lalas Gill Olgiawll 2ac

aspull (pojls

-
|
|
|
} wljililg
|
|
|
|
|
aalell olaell ol aylgall |
aylayll gggiidlg ue aapiul |
|
|
|
|
|
[ [ i |
|
Oggill Jgi pao enaaiill guiyll ‘ ) )
Gllall aylaill ggguill | Ollaall Jgi pae
|
|
|
b hl
‘ \
1 |
| | | | \ L1 \ \
LY e Olayall Sloaall sl o
Slaglaall Ujlaall ajgillg diahall ailuall axiall Slaillg Olypisisall

@lglaizags ilwly

il Slylwa G265 ge Joimall ynill @l

aapidl OblLwa

(Goliag Guiai) 19,400 (Lizs) 2024 alal ullall Slilgll Giaaill wlos pllas]
(AUP) 2,000 G-aaill @ilay (3l aplall Slaaill v ullasg ulaji
(ngg]g.ii.'l'),582 .JL:\ W-ag Oaag Ol (jLia) 2024 @l <l & ulall SLLU

éalpo clla 43 @iy unp-si wlail i agag @ac

& pAl) Ga- sl & y3aill Glal g abgal & cganall L alkall & las (5
eawil Oljliag Olabjllg Olgile lig ailgallg wilgyl ¢l (nd Lay , (Juabga
Al olibleallg & aaall &lai 6ial4ag




:da4gallg Olaldallg auiyill &ial .6

gl al4gall @lgallg Lgilolnisl (lug , dialll claci clawi (i
:aialll claci

aialll guiy enclwll 3030 @uly apwll
aialll guy) uili j@jo aasi gl
aialll giac 28 oy abl gl
aialll giac eilize aaoi Jilg aull
aialll giac ul&ll 3an0 qUb sl

wia aspildl §)la] gulaa éaclwal & a4gallg Wlaldallg Gl jll & ial wa gi
8)lalll yulaa dyghrel (pauipall @ 1as doalia (i) Joi o aplayl aillgguua clagll
PV Cudg o gyl gulaa (] Slogi @adi (W) (realwall J1é J-o gojidall
o ugaig @aal drwilly & wlia Lgil aialll 2 aiof (ill Gilpreilly G loi Lawa
vulaal (ngiwll @ paill @ phiig Gwii (2) . )byl gulaal & o)li aial (i gi &)yl
nd Loy ayaaiill g)lalll pa spelibll wilbg (el auogill (3) gulaall glalg &)1yl
Lgizélpag adnill (ua Olaldall dwluw (e & aalgall (@) , raaiill guygyll eLla
Y Cdg (o glall gulaal Slupgill @ g) () ayaaiill §jlall @ uaig . Lgiealag
JoacLbl JAuiy gillg . adpiddly golall &asgall Jula wnle asfidall Giba oill iy
d Alaa (pa Ol4pill & asga glike @ a G-algiy (pallg & Snirlh & adgall & whuw
aiwll (pa (i dadalll @ aiai Of weay .onjépall il wpaa aclgé alaag gl

Jalll (nle

JLmaldoil 3y)lgig dullall diull Jua dialll Lgiade (ill Olelaiatl aa e gly (v
.aialll cLaci g roal (madill jgaall Olpa 2ac glu ga

. 2024 @l c (na (lclainl a_cgana La §lhMl yulra o daliiall &ialll & dc
;a1 jg eall glclainill 2 édc .3 1gisi 22 g gula 4 a2 dc nallg

(Ulclainl 2) adalll guy) «nelwllaona @uby apudl -
(Ulelaial 2) adalll guyy ili ja@ja acoiapwll
(Ulclainl 2) aialll giac Qya u) abl adl
(Ulclainl 2) aialll giac cilize aaai Jilg auull

(glainl 1) aialll ghc ulSllaona Qo apwll

2024 ale Jus dasgall Gloi Lawa dialll clai pyas gasla (2

Glga ¢l la (na Lay, a45pildl & a4gn Glalulyl Eiyanig & ealpa (nle @ inlll i lac
Oa oill iy 2022 @lel (91) @d) jlp-all Laag &)layl gulaa glalg 8jlayl gulaa
.2018 alall (3a (19) gy lall Lagay jalell Olapidl a.aiga (Jg-la @laai oy wnlc

yblaallg @ljililg Guéaill aial .5

Lgl alagall algallg Lgilolnisl glug , &ialll clici clawi (i

:ialll clixei

aialll guy Qpa oy abl apll -
aialll guyy uili Jigj araallaie gagi sl
aialll gac Jowyllae allo Glagy auwsdll
ainlll giae j@ja acaiapull -

& anitll &ylal yulao saclwal p blaallg @ asgallg @liilllg Gaaill & ial @a gi
230ig a ineig (roylall G daall Ll (1) layanig , aulayll aildgg way clagll (ra
cnaaluallg &jlaul gulae daalgal g ola ,ells claial aic ,ailass clgilg @pilail
aslaglg ayllall alayl @ ailwg , &4nill aylallg g wlaall Slwylaall & oealya (U) |
eLl5 cLial aic , (ulalall G aaall clgilg dueig JLuial (2) . axllall SLilullg alslall
&)lal JLb| 3 1aig Gubi ile @ipbyl (3) gulslall Guaaill & nniall & glall ayanig
¢\lig Lgisélpag pblaall 3 yanil @ gald bolgs Lgial aSpil i (a 2 4lillg ! pblaall

Al (na Jalll inle Olpa 4 @ialll @ aiai.Lgic

Jilwall dunslial Lgayylgig diwll JUi dialll Lgiade (ill Glelaialllaac (v
uad il jgaall Ol a 23 ¢ glug . wnp-3i jgai daig aullall OLiLulb & dleiall
.82 doiall OlclaisMl (na clacill

2024 alc (na dlclainl d&o1w acgana La §jlaMl gulra o daiiall &inlll Gaéac

Jub wei12, gub weéi 12 ,g4la 16 ,g4la 9 ,yujla 19 ,1lpa 25 (na Yadac gillg ,
ol g aall Ol elaial darw Gadeg . pobgi 10 g (iliiiu)

(Ulelaial 7) aialll guui) Q4 L5y ab] aull
(Ulelaial 6) aialll guyly i Jigj aranllae gogi gl -
(Ulelaial 6) aialll gae Jowyllae allo glagy auwsdll +
(Olelaial 7) aialll giac }@ja sl il

-a2a Jolgill @ls)i glug (ueill 3y)lig aillagag &4nidl dadga Jgiwa @uwl
Oyl a4ni (pa daigall Jgguua winia (na @loall alilae (ple apwll (uoi @i
a3 ule Jol (nde 2wl 2018 pa_agi 4 (a fjluicl .w.@.gb Géall galhal

:JloiMll Juplai oy Laga . gl d 2ala ga piguasll dwaia (pa gugygliadll

105 : Jugaill @ay 17729984 :iidall @y *

39244610 : Jaiiall wilgll @éy  *
ali.a@bfm.bh :cnigfdll apll

34



37

wna 2024 aleoll JiULa a4pidl Lgy Gald il duisellg éuadill Slaablwall gl .10

Ulaala ag-ag @ac élla (na) .éiull inlc bLanllg (plaall @ ainall & raii

L5 il ill SLgall Ol g (GladLue (i @7 @ & Spill G183 cind
WUladlLall

wg-all liwlwo] @ o [iblajg ,aia g2 gai nall g aiaall @ ca e Lislglgl ij 4y
@280 d18lall dpall G wwgall @ a ggleill & Spinll als & yclaisill dlggwall
a_alpl eyl glaay ygib JUa aaliaall puill Laca , gigpay jLisa 15,000 ojaég @ La
U0 aollayle)s & cgiia Gljalua JUA G0 gainrall Igaca dapidl Jolgi, el is ]
Ow (u avolall lalbisil (ngs golaaiill parall J5aill aulle j4pal & wil Glleall
wluillg JLabill & aadall Glaallg @callg dleyll a4nidl jaa (e lpei ,Lale 20g 5
Laca guéall ailaiia @uadil aungll (el Lgigh galhall paiai La4 ,aagill gulnall

-alaill 5 @gl (niaia (dulle pby M) & le j44a (ngdal Lgia

sauslall Jauam .11

+Olapi ,alp-ai) 2024 na wy> 31 nd Lal (nadl waell 6 31410 g ujgis glw (i
spialy e puts upaa il gaill in e & dine (GLakhia gf, Clagha

d4glaall @guwill duwi

fio Luvall
\ gl dagln @a

“lobio Olanpn aljal

91.39% 65.73% 2.77% 22.89% tnlaa 1

8.60% - 7.65% 0.95% (4 §]TS 2

0.01% - - 0.01% ini || 3

100% 65.73% 10.42% 23.85% ggaaall

:@yjliallg Objuiall &ial .7
gl &lagall @lgallg Lgilolnial glug . &ialll cléci clawi (i

:aialll claei

aialll g lSllanna gl apwldl
aialll yuyy il onclwll aone @byl -
aialll grac Jowpllare allo glagy awsilll
aialll giac a4alnall aga aull »

a wlayll aildggway cl agll (na & Spildl §jlal yulaa éaclwal & inlll 02 & wa gig

arwyipll gyylivall (W) g A1l dalell Olyfitiallg aadll Slfdia (1) 0 Glei Lasa
alull  (pebaisl g Jiy U Loy dialll @ aias of oy Gl wil SLagillg

[Lanalaoil 3 ylgig dullall il JUA dialll Lgiade (ill Olelaiadlaaey glu (v
.aialll eLaci g raal ya il jgasll Slpasac Jlu ga

2024 @alc (na dlclainl 4o wi acgana La §jaMl gulra (o daliall ainlll Gaéac
.g-gs1,94igs 6 ,g4igs 2 ,g1la 16, yujla 19 ,plna 20 ,plna 14 (a Gade Gillg .
:aeaill jgall claisll adce .paagi 14 g gubwei 12

(Ulclaial 9) aialll guy) wulbllaano plo apwldl ¢
(Ulclaial 9) ainlll oy wili wchwll 3an0 @b auwdl -
(Ulelaial 7) aialll gac Jowpllae allo glagy awilll
(Ulclaial 9) aialll giac dAnlhall aga auwll e

:agjlaill ygguinllg @call dgial .8

a )Ml gulaa jlypéa anle L Lglh @3 Guun 2024 alall JUA dinlll 0a éh @ aini @l
.2024 gula (na aaoiall gclainlll

dhig (G239 Ol) losbeawl OLug llall diull JILS E18a SLallaa & Juolss .9
.’il-.... lﬂjlﬁ _ ....II .-' "an

2024 qaleoll JU5 a14ipa dallaa ajiangy
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:pllill Laag , Olapidl dadga Gliza @léals @ljilill (haa aubgi.12

uluwi aubgi
@ljildl @ac
(Saag gl)

Snagigliale J@gag Jlaaasnill gjlal gulaaagag: liasall

&ylaMllg &jlaMl gulaa clirei wnal Jgiy Oi way :2 favall
apiill Galals 2ilgg Los] &s3,aill

agud @bgs @gdy i §)lalll yulaa nle winy i3 iayall
alayllg , adlall pylaillg Guaaill (nle 6a3a1ig dajlo
.Ogilall aljililg , &alall

dllea Olelpl gBgs @gdi i aspidl wnle :4 iavall
-8)laYl gulaa clirei @uidig wyjaig Gueil

&jlaMl gulaa cliaci 6lal4a a4pidl inle winy 25 iavall
.dlgiwag dlale adyphy Gulgimall jisg

anlg gylal Jaud gbg §lail yulaa wnle winy :6iauall
Obninllg araibgll Slhawallasanig, a4pill Jledg

Ubdgiwallgalaallg

;(padbuall ga Jblgii gi @apidl wnle vy ;7 iavall
.@Aadgdn @fiaig a4jliwall (nlc @@oaiiig

AN NEIEE N N N N NN

Laiadgn (e alnalll aspill @géi i was :8 iavall

dxatlwlll Slaaall @ads yill Slépidl @jili: :9 iaxall
-agatlwlll &aypill inaliay

<

dallw ga 251l §jlail yulaa wnle winy 110 iagall
JUa ga , gredlwall dasdall dullall SLiluwdl
O lall Sblwall (nééaay dileiwill

<

algiwall JUi o aapidl (newsi gi was :11iavall
.allb blgal Layga dwjlaa wnll drclaisMl

Ol g &4pidl JLa yuly g—a fisi gi 5% gg-4las il (padlwall glu (v
no_uws 31 gné Lad , anoilgill asaiwall @gwill ¢Lila (naubhll gas bl I
:ondlill Jgaall uawn 2024

sl @ul @gwill duwi .
saiwall raphll || guly go dhglaall | @G 11 awnll
wilgill apidl Jla glos

gl dagan 65.73% 16,322,806 aralal
Oolbha &4n Ualha d4pb
jlaallg Guaall 7.44% 1,848,000 plaallg Guaall
Jizj apaallage 8.25% 2,048,877 Jigj aallase
Jijaana JiJj aana

31/12/2024 (na Las d34lall @ aal Liag (nadlall g ujgi daauds glu (o
:endlill Jgaall uaun

@gwill duwi ) sae
i) go daglaall e : (apw) @gwill &14la
Jlall asglaall nadluall

13.83% 3,435,449 1,737 50,000 (o Jai

Jai nll 50,000 (o

4.55% 1,128,974 15 500,000 e

wll 500,000 ga

15.69% 3,896,877 2 5,000,000 (o Jai
65.73% 16,322,806 1 5,000,000 ga psl

.aulagl Olgall Jué (o dasglha Slalnal &i.13
.Ul apyg) gdga wnle d4pill Sbslnal wall egapll tnop

wclwll aan0 @b
&)\l gulaa guuj)

2025 gujla 12

31/12/2024 (na LaA a33uaiill jlaMl g 8jlaMl gulaa cliaci Gadlua (3
@pwi i ayaaiill 8)lallg 8)lall gulaa clacl a ool elliag ¥, 2024 pauwa 31 Gin

2024 @lall Juls a&pildl cdalp Gill dpagall Slasill gly (@

& ddaonll agiwll & dlall SLiLW g a G apall )12l gu lna § 1147 (nle cllbMl (nap
2024 na uws 31 (a daugiiall d@iwll @ Apidl Ceaalp il dwadipll Sla il gludl
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daagail oyl

5 (wlg wnpiad auwll

nsgaiill guyil
2018 Jupi - olball a4nid @lasilll Ayl

.auall ggguidlg Obguiiall aylayll aialll guyy <

Uggirllg (nabgall gggid ayylayll aialll yu iy <
.ayjlal

sblaallg Guaaill aylayl aialll g <

snall

Olelio qra Olliwl a5 2018 - 2017 pliy. <
uibg yulwi wnle ayilasll algall gujgig (bl
Oliagll yjga g o Lbyi Jaoi Liayal ugingna
Gg-wll Jg23 (na quclll (nagyglll & arasll
Aayalll

2l Ol & 4ni - Alulaall jaa 2016 - 2013 ¢
Lidyal g i, gupa 2ol ag 4

Slulasll piaa / alall paall (il 2013 - 2003 €
,63ga2 2all & ugjglll glag il palba & Api -
.62 1iall @ Alaall

Jialail & 4nb - Alalaoll y yaa 2003 - 2002 <
.63 1iall & Alaall , 63gaaall ja iagp

Olagall

piwola - 6aaiall @ Alaall , Oglaijgs Gealy <
(MBA) JLacill 3jla] (p_a

- Luayal ugin (ra wgnall gab alail <
U=b Liaglgidi/ g adllg 6jall gab Linglgihil
.Gaall

dypaiil oyl

g)ad cniigy enle apwll

aylaill gggull (pagaidl gusigl
2021 Jupi - galball (il @lanivl 2yl

-auall gggullg Olidall aylaMl daialll giae ¢
Uuggdlg (nabgall ggguid aybyl ainlllghc ¢
.gjlal

yblaallg Guaaill aylayl aialll gae <

énall

. U=l FlatéLabs - waiiall gnoll 2020 ¢
(=l @ aliall

2 ana - (naaidll gu il woili 2006-2020 <
Ol & aliall , allgalg graa

Ol@gall

aaioa ()bl wwbha ¢

e psill @ o Jlaclll gl (pa pilwala ¢
ia Luloll Sluwlall @44 (e JLaclll aaly)
8aaiall Slovgll, FW. Olin JLacill &lal
G140l

g0 Jlaclll gjla] (pa @g-loll yugygllay <
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Vision
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Board of
Directors Report

2024 Company achievements summary

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C (Al-Matahin)
Board of Directors Report for the year ending 31
December 2024

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C. (Al-Matahin), | am
pleased to present to you the annual report for the fiscal year ending 31 December 2024.

Company Performance:

In 2023, the company achieved a historic milestone by recording the highest sales volumes in
its history, thanks to an increase in market demand. Although this demand continued to rise in
2024, it experienced a slight decline of 1% during the year. The company also faced operational
challenges resulting from rising energy costs, land acquisition necessary to complete the
strategic mills project, and planned upgrades to the mill with limited increases in production

capacity.

These investments are essential for maintaining the sustainability of our operations in aging
infrastructure but have also led to increased depreciation expenses and resulted in negative
operational outcomes this year. The mill upgrade project, completed with limited expansion in
March 2024, is a significant achievement that increased production capacity by an additional
100 metric tons per day, executed without any disruption to supply or impact on product
availability in the local market. Completing this work while maintaining production flow reflects
the commitment of management and staff, under the oversight of the Board of Directors of the

mills.

Additionally, the company has made notable progress in enhancing customer experience by
transitioning from the old voucher system to a new e-commerce platform, which significantly
reduced the burdens on our clients, facilitated transaction processing, and improved data
collection about the local market. These efforts highlight the company’s commitment to

innovation and sustainable growth despite the aforementioned financial challenges.

Overall, Al-Matahin Company achieved a net profit of BHD 432,791 this year. Based on the results

achieved, the Board of Directors has recommended the following to the General Assembly for

the year ending December 31, 2024:

* A cash dividend distribution to shareholders at a rate of 25 files per share (or 25% of the paid-
up capital), totaling BHD 620,620.

* An allocation of BHD 25,000 for social and charitable initiatives.




Company Directions and Future Plans:

Looking to the future, the mills company has laid the foundation for significant growth by secur-
ing strategic land near Khalifa Port, designated for the construction of a new mill and storage
silos with enhanced production and storage capacity. This ambitious project aligns with the vision
of the mills company and the Government of the Kingdom of Bahrain to contribute to the food
security of our beloved kingdom and ensure a stable and sustainable supply chain in the future.

Currently, the mills company is coordinating with all stakeholders and government entities to
achieve this long-term vision. The project is now in the planning phase, focusing on securing ap-
provals, resources, and collaboration with relevant government ministries to realize this vital ini-
tiative. This future strategy reaffirms the company’s commitment to innovation and excellence,
as well as its central role in supporting national priorities. We also remain committed to adhering
to the highest standards in governance, the implementation of control policies and internal sys-
tems, and the application of quality across the company’s health and safety systems.

Social Responsibility:

Our priorities are focused on supporting the community we live in. Driven by a strong sense of
social responsibility, the company partnered with the Royal Charity Organization to provide a
contribution of BHD 15,000 to support families in need during the blessed month of Ramadan. In
addition, the company continues to support the community through various initiatives, including
sponsoring several key events at Alia Center for Early Intervention for Individuals with Disabili-
ties, reflecting the company’s pride in the support and services provided to children and young

people with autism.

Al- Matahin is also proud in being the sole sponsor of the flour products provided to Alia Center
Café (Hala Bay Alia), wishing them every success.

Thanks and Gratitude:

On behalf of myself and the Board of Directors and the Shareholders, | would like to express our
greatest and most sincere appreciation to His Majesty King Hamad bin Isa Al Khalifa, The King of
the Kingdom of Bahrain, and His Royal Highness Prince Salman bin Hamad Al Khalifa, The Crown
Prince, Deputy Supreme Commander and Prime Minister for their tremendous leadership, wis-
dom, and support.

We also would like to extend our thanks to the Ministers, agents, managers, and heads of depart-
ments in the Ministries and Government organizations of the Kingdom for their wise guidance,
cooperation, and continuous support.

We also assure you that the company’s success is not possible without the hard work and
dedication of its all staff, and extend our many thanks, appreciation, and gratitude to all
its employees for their dedication and hard work which has led to these achievements
and assured the best possible results for 2024 under challenging conditions.

We are fortunate to have such a committed and outstanding team, and we are confident
that this organization will continue to achieve success in the future. The company
places great importance on investing in its employees and refining and developing
their specialized skills across all areas and operations. This preparation equips them to
assume leadership rolesin the future. Al-Matahin has consistently maintained high levels
of Bahrainization for several years and continues to strive to increase this percentage
while providing professional development opportunities. This commitment is aimed
at enhancing national talent and empowering them through comprehensive training
and development programs, which equip our employees with the knowledge and skills
necessary to achieve excellence in business performance and contribute effectively to
the company’s growth and sustainability.
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As part of the Company'’s obligation to maintain utmost transparency with our valued
shareholders, we are pleased to attach the table below that shows the remuneration of
members of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management for the fiscal year
ending 31 December 2024:

First: Board of Directors’ Remuneration Details:

Name Fixed remunerations Variable = a .
(BHD) remunerations = Eg g
5 = 5 <
5o | © 5o v EaT | 3
28% 238 2% £ S o35 |3
oS58 | 8oEB| 8 | b s5.lg/2l%| = IFREREERE
BES BEES| £ | § B BEol 2| ¢| 2| B M =28 | ¢
© SEEsE @ 3 SEol £ 2 =} d 5T 2
g5 | R25¢| B | S ° gEml o= 2| ° IS Po® c
555 | E8gE| 8| O 2% | % 5|8 Al B 3
§28 | F55 B2 | |5 gl €¢ |
First: Independent Directors
- Basim Mohammed 10,408 | 9,900 20,308 20,308
AlSaie
2-Salah Mohammed Al 5201 | 8,900 14,101 14,101
Kulaib
3-AymanAbdulthameed | 5201 | 6,000 1,201 1,201
Zainal
4-Eyad Redha Faraj 5,201 8,200 13,401 13,401
5-Raghdan Salen 5201 | 10,000 15,201 15,201
Qassim
Second: Non- Executive Directors / Non-Independent Directors
6- Ahmad Mazhar 5,201 7,500 12,701 12,701
7- Wael Itani 5,201 4,500 9,701 9,701
8- Fahad Al Mudhahka 5201 | 8,000 13,201 13,201

Third: Executive Directors

14

Second: Executive Management Remuneration Details

Executive Total paid Total paid Any other cash/in

salaries and remuneration kind remuneration

management
allowances*** (Bonus) for 2024

Aggregate
Amount

Top 6 remunerations for
executives, including CEO 396,528 102,277 12,320
and Senior Financial Officer

511,125

Other remunerations:

* |t includes in-kind benefits - specific amount - remuneration for technical, administrative and advisory works (if any).

** [t includes the board member’s share of the profits - Granted shares (insert the value) (if any).
*%% This represents the end of service benefits of BD 15,648 accrued but not paid during the year.

Notes:

1. Disclosure is for the top 6 executives who are employees of the entity as on the reporting date.

Basim Mohammed AlSaie Salah Mohamed Al Kulaib
Chairman Vice Chairman
25 February 2024
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Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.s.c.

Commercial Registration No. 1170-1

Corporate Governance Report For The Year Ending 31
December 2024

G Ove r n a n Ce R e po rt This report outlines the Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C. adherence to the Principles of the

Corporate Governance Code (“Governance Code”) as issued by the Bahrain Ministry of Industry

Company Achievements in the Kingdom of Bahrain and Commerce, and the Central Bank of Bahrain's Rulebook Volume 6 High Level Controls

Module (“CBB Module HC"), as well as the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines.

1. Description of the actions taken to complete the Corporate Governance Code during

the year 2024 and how they were applied

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C. (‘BFM’) is adhering to adopting and applying the highest
standards related to corporate governance, whereby the Company’s Corporate Governance
Guidelinesincluding the charters of the Board of Directors and its committees are periodically

reviewed and updated in accordance with the requirements of:

+ Corporate Governance Code issued by the Ministry of Industry and Commerce under
Resolution No. (19) of 2018 dated March 19, 2018.
* High Level Controls Module of the Central Bank of Bahrain (‘CBB’) Rulebook, Volume 6.

However, there were no updates during the year.

Description of the transactions of the directors, their spouses, and sons on the

Company’s shares during the year 2024 according to the following table

There were no transactions related to the Board of Directors of the Company, their spouses

and or sons on the Company'’s shares during 2024.
Composition of the Board

a) Description of the current Board composition

Article 24 of the Articles of Association of the Company states that the company shall be
administered by a Board of Directors consisting of no less than 5 and no more than 15
members. As of 31 December 2024, the total number of Directors appointed / Elected to

BFM's Board of Directors was 8:
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Independence

® Non
independent

@ Independent

Diversity

® remale
@ Male

* All Directors are Non-Executive Directors

a) Description of the current Board composition

The functions of the Board are those established by the Corporate Governance Code

2018, and the amendments made thereafter, the Commercial Companies’ Law of

the Kingdom of Bahrain and the CBB Rulebook, Volume 6 - Module HC, as well as the

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”).

The Board's duties, as per their terms of reference, include but not limited to:

Overseeing the company'’s performance, strategy and business plan

Ensuring that financial statements are prepared which accurately disclose the
company'’s financial position

Setting up a mechanism to regulate transactions with related parties in order to
minimize conflicts of interest and prevent abusive related party transactions
Selecting, monitoring and, when necessary, replacing key executives and overseeing
succession planning

Aligning key executive and directors remuneration with the longer-term interests of
the company and the shareholders

Ensuring the integrity of the company’s accounting and financial reporting systems,
including the independent audit, and that appropriate systems of control are in place,
in particular, systems for risk management, financial and operational control, and
compliance with the law and relevant standards

Assuring equitable treatment of shareholders, including minority shareholders
Adopting the financial and operational policies associated with the company’s business
performance and achievement of its objectives

Drawing, overseeing and periodically reviewing the company’s plans, policies,
strategies, and key objectives

+ Determining the Company’s optimal capital structure, strategies and financial
objectives and approving annual budgets

+ Reviewing and approving the Authority Matrix and Delegation of Authority Limits

c) Types of Material Transactions Requiring the Board’'s Approval

The Delegation of Authority Levels (DAL) summarizes areas relating to strategies, long-

term commitments, and policies where approval of the Board is necessary.
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Corporate
Governance Report
For The Year Ending
31 December 2024

Overview of Bahrain Flour Mills Company Board of Directors

Mr. Basim Mohamed Al Saie

Non - Executive / Independent Since 2023

> Chairman of the Board of Directors

> Chairman of the Nomination, Remuneration
and Governance Committee

> Vice-Chairman of the Purchasing and Projects
Committee

Experience

» Co-founder and partner of Installux Gulf
Company B.S.C. since 1997

Qualifications

» Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering
from Boston University, USA.

Directorships and positions
in other companies

» Chairman - Bahrain Food Holding Company
» Board Member - Real Estate Regulatory Authority
> Board Member - Tamkeen

> Vice-Chairman of the Board - Gulf Aluminium
Rolling Mill (GARMCO)

> Member of the Executive Board - Bahrain
Chamber of Commerce & Industry

> Board Member - Kalaam Telecom

> Managing Director & Board Member - Polycon
Bahrain
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Mr. Salah Mushari Al Kulaib

Non - Executive / Independent Since 2015

> Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors

> Chairman of the Purchasing and Projects
Committee

> Member of the Nomination, Remuneration
and Governance Committee

Experience

> More than 40 years of experience in
Mechanical Engineering and Boards

Qualifications

> Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering

Directorships and positions

in other companies

> Ex-Chairman - Kuwait Flour Mills and Bakeries
Company

> Vice Chairman - Industrial Bank of Kuwait

> Chairman - Kuwait Supply Company
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Mr. Ayman Abdulhameed Zainal

Non - Executive / Independent Since 2017

> Member of the Board of Directors

> Vice-Chairman of the Audit, Compliance and
Risk Committee

Experience
> Chief Commercial Officer -Bahrain Airport Company
from 2017 to Present

> More than 23 years of experience in the managerial
and financial fields in the GCC

> Chief Executive Officer - Real Capita from 2012 to
2015

> Acting Head of Finance and Admin, Advisor to CEO -
Bahrain Chamber for Dispute Resolution from 2011
to 2012, Bahrain

> Board Member of Oman Development Company
from 2005 to 2007, Oman

> Chairman of Al Batinah Development & Investment
Holding from 2004 to 2007, Oman

> Computer Engineer - BAE SYSTEMS from 1996 to
2000, USA

Qualifications
> Master of Business Administration, Webster
University, College of Business, Orlando, USA

> Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Science,
University of South Florida, College of
Engineering, USA

Directorships and positions
in other companies

» Chief Commercial Officer - Bahrain Airport
Company from 2017 to Present
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Mr. Eyad Redha Faraj

Non - Executive / Independent Since 2020

> Member of the Board of Directors

> Chairman of the Audit, Compliance and Risk
Committee

> Member of the Nomination, Remuneration
and Governance Committee

Experience

> Partner - Head of MENA Investor Support / Head
of Bahrain Office - Roland Berger Middle East
Bahrain

> WorkedasDirector of Investments and Structured
Financein SAYACORPB.S.C(c)

> Previously worked as MENA Equities Analyst -
Executive Director in Goldman Sachs International

> Served as Equity Analyst at Bank of America
Merrill Lynch

> Joined Gulf International Bank in 2004 as Credit
Analyst and promoted to Relationship Manager

> Worked in Altus Pharmaceuticals as accountant
and business development executive

Qualifications

> INSEAD MBA Class of December 2008

> Bachelor of Science in Accounting, Bentley
University, USA

Directorships and positions
in other companies

> Board Member - Bahrain Food Holding Company

> Partner - Head of MENA Investor Support / Head
of Bahrain Office - Roland Berger Middle East
Bahrain

Ms. Raghdan Saleh Abdulrasool

Non - Executive / Independent Since 2020

> Member of the Board of Directors

> Member of the Audit, Compliance and Risk
Committee

> Member of the Purchasing and Projects
Committee

Experience

> Worked as the Director of Public Revenues Policy
at the Ministry of Finance and National Economy,
Kingdom of Bahrain

> More than 11-years of experience in public finance,
management, policy making and procedural
frameworks

Qualifications

> Master’s in public management at Aix-Marseille
in cooperation with the University of Bahrain and
Bahrain Institute of Public Administration

> Bachelor of Science in Accounting and Finance at
Ahlia University

Directorships and positions
in other companies

> Deputy CE for Policies and Foreign Relations at the
National Bureau for Revenue
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Mr. Ahmad Mazhar

Non - Executive / Non-Independent (Since October 2022)

> Member of the Board of Directors

> Vice-Chairman of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Governance Committee

> Member of the Audit, Compliance and Risk
Committee

Experience

> Over 15 years of experience in private equity with a strong
track recordin sourcing, executing, and managing portfolio
companies across a diverse range of industries in MENA,
Southeast Asia, and Sub- Saharan Africa

> Prior joining Mumtalakat, he was a Managing Director at
Helios Fairfax Partners (HFP), overseeing new investments
and portfolio management for the Southern Africa region

> He also served as an interim Chief Restructuring Officer of
AFGRI Group, a portfolio company of HFP and one of the
largest Agri services company in Southern Africa.

> He has also held various positions at several international
organisations such as the Abraaj Group, Fairfax Africa
Holdings and Emerging Capital Partners.

Qualifications

> MBA in Finance and Entrepreneurship from
the University of Pennsylvania, The Wharton
School

> BEngin Electrical Engineering from Georgia
Institute of Technology

Directorships and positions
in other companies

> Executive Director - Strategic Investments at Bahrain
Mumtalakat Holding Company (BMHC), Bahrain

> Chairman - Asturiana de Aleasciones S.A. (Aleasture), Spain

> Director - Bahrain Network (BNET) B.S.C, Bahrain

> Director - Beyon Bahrain, Bahrain

> Director - Prime Magnetics Holding S.L. (PREMO), Spain

Mr. Wael Ahmed Itani

Non-Executive / Non-Independent (Since 2023)

> Member of the Board of Directors

> Member of the Nomination, Remuneration
and Governance Committee

Experience

> 31yearsin FMCG industry

> Specialized with Distributor Management Model
with a proven track record in developing purpose-led
brands and driving consumer centric sales across

various geographic regions: GCC, MEA & India

> Worked as Business Director for Edgewell Personal
Care (EPC) - MEA

> Previously worked as Commercial Director for
Energizer Holdings Inc. - MEA/India

> Served as Project Team Leader to launch Imperial
Tobacco - North Africa

> Previously Launched Sony Consumer Electronics
Levant and Headed Beirut Office

> Joined P&G in 1993 as credit sales executive- UAE

Qualifications

> LAU (Lebanese American University) Masters
in International Affairs (International Political
Economy), Lebanon (1998 - 2000)

> AUB (American University of Beirut) Bachelor of
Sciencein Political Science and Public Administration,
Lebanon (1990 - 1993)

Directorships and positions
in other companies

> CEO - General Poultry Company - Kingdom of
Bahrain

> CEO - Bahrain Food Holding Company - Kingdom
of Bahrain
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Mr. Fahad Mohamed Almudhahka

Non - Executive / Non - Independent Since 2023

> Member of the Board of Directors

> Member of the Purchasing and Projects
Committee

Experience

» Working as Director of Government &
Parliamentary Affairs - Bahrain Mumtalakat
Holding Company

> Worked as Manager in the Legal Department -
Tamkeen

> Worked as Liaison Assistant - Education &
Training Quality Authority

Qualifications

> Masters of Commercial Law from Applied
Science University, Bahrain

> Bachelor of Law from Al Yarmook University,
Jordan

Directorships and positions
in other companies

> Director of Government and Parliamentary Affairs -
Bahrain Mumtalakat Holding Company
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d) Description of the following
1.  Total remunerations paid to the directors for the year 2023.
The total remuneration paid to the Board of Directors of the Company for services

during year 2023 was, in the aggregate, BHD 60,000.

2. The proposed total remuneration to be paid to the directors for the year 2024,
which will be presented at the annual general meeting for approval.

The proposed remuneration of the Board of Directors of the Company for services

during year 2024 is, in the aggregate, BHD 46,815. This amount is subject to the approval

of the shareholders.

3.  Description of thesitting fees paid to the directors for attendance of the Board and
Board’'s committees for the financial year 2024 according to the following table.

The tables below show the fees for the Board of Directors:

Board of Directors (2023-2026)

Aggregate amount of the sitting fees paid for attendance of the Board
and Board Committees
Name
Board / Committee* Sitting Fees (BHD)**
1 Mr. E%asim Mohamed BOD, NRGC and PPC 9,900
Al Saie
2 Mr. Salgh Mushari BOD, PPC and NRGC 8,900
AlKulaib
Mr. Ayman
3 | Abdulhameed Zainal BOD and ACRC 0,000
4 Mr. Eyad Redha Faraj BOD, ACRC and NRGC 8,200
Ms. Raghdan Saleh 10,000
5 Abdulr-asool BOD, ACRC and PPC '
6 || Mr.AhmadMazhar BOD, NRGC and ACRC 7,500
Mr. Fahad Mohamed
8,000
/ Almudhahka BODand PPC
8 || Mr.Wael Ahmed Itani BOD and NRGC 4,500
Total 63,000

*BOD: Board of Directors, ACRC: Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee, PPC: Purchasing
and Projects Committee, NRGC: Nomination, Remuneration and Governance Committee

** Please refer to Section e, 5, 6 and 7 below for the attendance details.

e) Number and dates of the Board's meetings held during the financial year
2024, in addition to the number of times directors attended in person or by visual
communication and a description of the directors present by proxy.

The tables below show the fees for the Board of Directors:
The Board held a total of five meetings in 2024, which were held on 27 February, 12 May,

13 August, 12 November and 8 December. The five meetings were held in person:

Mr. Basim Mohamed (5 Meetings)
Al Saie

Mr. Salah Mushari (5 Meetings)
Al Kulaib

Mr. Ayman :
Abdulhameed Zainal (4 Meetings)
Mr. Fahad Mohamed (5 Meetings)
Almudhahka

Mr. Eyad Redha Faraj (5 Meetings)
Ms. Raghdan Saleh (5 Meetings)
Abdulrasool

Mr. Ahmad Mazhar (4 Meetings)
Mr. Wael Ahmed Itani (5 Meetings)

f) Description of the Board's duties and competences carried out on its behalf by
the Executive Management by delegation of authority, specifying the duration and
validity of the delegation.

There were no tasks and mandates delegated by the Board of Directors to the Executive

Management during the year 2024.

f) Details of transactions with related parties (stakeholders), indicating the nature of
relationship and type of transaction.
Details of transactions with related parties are included in Note No. 25 of the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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h) The Company’s organizational structure, including the first and second grades at a

minimum and including the Company’s general manager and/or chief executive officer,

deputy general manager and managers

Board of Directors

Subsidy &
Commercialization
Committee

Purchasing and
Projects Committee

Nominations
Remuneration and
Governance Committee

Audit, compliance
& risk committee

Exc. Admin Affairs

i) Total remunerations paid to the key executive officers, including salaries, benefits,
allowances, increases, stock options, end-of-service benefits, pensions, etc.

The total paid remuneration to the key executive officers (including salaries and other
benefits) is, in the aggregate, BHD 511,125. Please refer to Note 25 of the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 for the details.

4. External Auditors

a) Providing shareholders with the auditor’'s profile and overview of its
professional  performance

Ernst & Young provides audit, consulting, tax, business risk, technology and security
risk services, and human capital services worldwide. The company, one of the Big
Four accounting firms, dates back to the early twentieth century. Scotsman Arthur
Young and American Alwin Ernst founded their separate companies in 1906 and
1903, respectively. The companies merged in 1989. Today the company employs over
200,000 people and operates in over 150 countries.

The review is conducted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing
No. 2410, “Review of interim financial information by an auditor independent of
the organization.” A review of interim financial information consists primarily of
making inquiries of personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters and
performing analytical reviews and other review procedures. The scope of the audit
is much less than the scope of an audit conducted in accordance with international
auditing standards.

b) Fees and charges for the audit or services provided by the external auditor
during the year 2024, in addition to a description of the auditor’s years of service

as the Company’s external auditor.

Name of the audit firm

EY

Years of service as the Company's external auditor

2 years

Board Sec. ‘ i
\ Senior risk & Internal
| compliance Auditor
} manager outsourced
! \
\
\
[ [ | ‘
Human }
PR & Admin Security | | pesources |
\
\
\
\
\
[ [ ; |
. Chief ‘ Snr.
. . \ .
Sr;’rlail:gaen:e Commercial ! Operations
Officer } Manager
\
\
b — — .
\
| |
| N
[ [ | [ \ Ll \ \
Sales & - . . Technical Health &
. . Procurement
IT Warehouse Dispatch Milling Engineering Services Safety
\
Packing

Name of the partner in charge of the Company’s audit

Prasanth Govindapuram

The partner’s years of service as the partner in charge
of the Company'’s audit

Less than one year

Total audit fees for the financial statements for the year
2024 (BHD

BD 19,400 (Audit and
Reviews)

Other special fees and charges for non-audit services
other than auditing the financial statements for the
year 2024 (BHD) if any.

BD 2,000 (AUP fees)

BD 582 (Technology Fees)
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5. Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee (‘ACRC’)

a) Names,competences,and duties of the committee’s members.

ACRC Members
Mr. Eyad Redha Faraj Chairman
Mr. Ayman Abdulhameed Zainal Vice Chairman
Ms. Raghdan Saleh Abdulrasool Member
Mr. Ahmad Mazhar Member

The Purpose of the Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee ('ACRC) is to assist the Company’s
Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to (a) select, appoint, remunerate
or, where appropriate, terminate the external auditor, subject to ratification by the Board
and the Shareholders, (b) review the Company’s accounting and financial practices, and
the integrity of the financial control, internal control and financial statements, (c) select,
appoint and terminate, where appropriate, of the internal auditor and the budget allocated
to the internal audit (d) oversee the implementation and effective operation of the risk
management framework; and ensure that the Company has in place adequate controls to

identify, monitor and report the risk. The ACRC shall meet at least four times a year.

b) Number and dates of meetings held by the committee during the year to discuss
issues related to financial statements and any other matters and the number of times
members attended the meetings in person.

The Committee emerged from the Board of Directors held a total of seven meetingsin 2024,
which were held on 25 February, 19 March, 9 May, 16 May, 12 August, 12 August (Exceptional)

and 10 November. The seven meetings were held in person:

Mr. Eyad Redha Faraj Chairman (7 Meetings)
Mr. Ayman Abdulhameed Zainal Vice Chairman (6 Meetings)
Ms. Raghdan Saleh Abdulrasool Member (6 Meetings)
Mr. Ahmad Mazhar Member (7 Meetings)

Corporate governance officer’'s name, qualifications, date of appointment, and contact
details.
Mr. Ali Abdulelah Almoalem has been appointed as the Corporate Governance Officer of
Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C. effective 4th November 2018. Mr. Almoalem holds
bachelor’s degree in Computer Engineering from the University of Bahrain. Below are the
contact details:

Office No.: +973- 17729984/ Ext: 105

Mobile number: +97339244610

E-mail Address: ali.a@bfm.bh

Nomination, Remuneration and Governance Committee (NRGC)
a) Names ,competences, and duties of the committee’s members
NRGC Members

. Mr. Basim Mohamed Al Saie Chairman

. Mr. Ahmad Mazhar Vice Chairman
¢ Mr. Eyad Redha Faraj Member

¢ Mr.Wael Ahmed Itani Member

*  Mr.Salah Mushari Al Kulaib Member

The purpose of the Nomination, Remuneration and Governance Committee (‘(NRGC’)
is to assist the Company’s Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
to (a) review all candidates for board membership recommended by the shareholders
(b) make recommendations to the board from time-to-time as to changes the
committee believes to be desirable to the size and composition of the board or any
committee of the board, (c) coordinate and organize the annual evaluation of the
Board and Board Committees (d) recommend the appointment of specific executive
managers vacancies including the CEO, (e) approve, monitor and review the
Company’s remuneration policy, and evaluation of the executive management, (f)
develop and recommend to the Board changes from time to time in BFM's written
corporate governance guidelines, which shall constitute BFM's corporate governance
policy framework and shallinclude or refer to the principles and numbered directives
of the Corporate Governance Code of the Kingdom of Bahrain (“Bahrain Code”) and
CBB Rulebook. The NRGC shall meet at least twice a year.

b) Number and dates of meetings held by the committee during the financial
year and the number of times members attended the meetings in person.
The committee emerged from the Board of Directors held a total of two meetings

in 2024, which were held on 4 May and 22 October. The two meetings were held in

person:

. Mr. Basim Mohamed Al Saie Chairman (2 Meetings)
. Mr. Ahmad Mazhar Vice Chairman (2 Meetings)
*  Mr.Eyad Redha Faraj Member (2 Meetings)
. Mr. Wael Ahmed Itani Member (2 Meetings)
. Mr. Salah Mushari Al Kulaib Member (1Meeting)

¢) Summary of the committee performance report with regard to the
Governance during the year 2024.

The NRGC reviewed and updated the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines,
including the charters of the Board and Board's Committees as per the Resolution
No. (91) of 2022 concerning the amendments to certain provisions of the Corporate

Governance Code Issued by Resolution No. (19) of 2018.
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7.

8.

10.

Purchasing and Projects Committee (‘PPC’):

a) Names,competences,and duties of thecommittee’s members.

PPC Members
*  Mr. Salah Mushari Al Kulaib Chairman
*  Mr.Basim Mohamed Al Saie Vice Chairman
*  Ms. Raghdan Saleh Abdulrasool Member

o Mr. Fahad Mohamed Almudhahka Member

Thepurposeof the PurchasingandProjects Committee (‘PPC’)istoassistthe Company’sBoard
of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to (a) wheat procurement,
and other general procurements, and (b) major project and capital expenditures. The PPC

shall meet at least twice a year.

b) Number and dates of meetings held by the committee during the financial year and
the number of times members attended the meetings in person.

The committee emerged from the Board of Directors held a total of nine meetings in 2024,
which were held on 14 February, 20 February, 19 March, 16 May, 2 June, 6 June, 1July, 12

August and 14 November. The nine meetings were held in person:

. Mr. Salah Mushari Al Kulaib Chairman (9 Meetings)
. Mr. Basim Mohamed Al Saie Vice Chairman (9 Meetings)
. Ms. Raghdan Saleh Abdulrasool Member (7 Meetings)
. Mr. Fahad Mohamed Almudhahka Member (9 Meetings)

Subsidy and Commercialization Committee ("SCC’)
This committee did not meet during the year 2024 as it was resolved based on the decision

of the Board of Directors in the meeting held on May 2024.

Details of any irregularities committed during the financial year, their causes (if any),
and the plan to address them in order to avoid future recurrence

There are no irregularities committed during the year 2024.

Description of the cash and in-kind contributions made by the Company during the
year 2024 for the purpose of community development and environment preservation,
indicating the recipients of these contributions

Our priorities have focused on supporting the community we are a part of. In line with our
strong sense of social responsibility, the company collaborated with the Royal Humanitarian
Foundation to provide an amount of 15,000 Bahraini Dinars in support of needy families

during the holy month of Ramadan.

1.

In addition, the company continues to support the community through various
initiatives, such as sponsoring several key events for Alia Center for Early Intervention
for individuals with special needs aged between 5 and 20 years, expressing the
company'’s pride in the care, support, and services provided to children and youth
with autism. Bahrain Flour Mills Company is also proud to be the sole sponsor of
providing flour products in support of Alia Center Café (Halla by Alia), wishing them
every success.

Ownership Structure
a) Statement of shareholders’ equity as of 31 December 2024 (individuals,
corporate, governmental organizations) to be classified as follows: Local, Gulf,

Arab, and foreign.

Shareholding %
Shareholder
classification
Individuals Corporate C‘i;vern.mept or Total
rganizations
Local 22.89% 2.77% 65.73% 91.39%
Arab 0.95% 7.65% - 8.60%
Foreign 0.01% - - 0.01%
Total 23.85% 10.42% 65.73% 100%

b) Description of the shareholders who hold 5% or more of the Company's share

capital, indicating the name of the natural person who holds the shares, the final

beneficiary, as at 31December 2024 as follows.

Number of Shareholding Name of the na!tural
Name person, the final
shares held % . .
beneficiary

Bahrain FoodHolding | | ¢ 355 g0g 65.73% Bahrain Government
Company
Kuwait Flour Mills & Kuwait Flour Mills &
IBakeriesCo 1,848,000 7.44% Bakeries
ol B LES A INE L 2,048,877 8.25% Abdulhameed Zainal
Mohamed Zainal
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c) Description of how shareholders are distributed according to their respective

shareholding as at 31 December 2024 as follows.

Ve No of Number of SERGE T
shareholders shares held
<50,000 1,737 3,435,449 13.83%
50,000 to >500,000 15 1,128,974 4.55%
500,000 to 5,000,000 2 3,896,877 15.69%
>5,000,000 1 16,322,806 65.73%

d) Share holding by Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management as
at 31 December 2024.
As at 31 December 2024, none of Board of Directors and Executive Management hold any

shares of the Company.

e) Description of the significant events that occurred during the year 2024.
Please refer to the Board of Directors Report enclosed with the annual audited financial

statements for the year ending 31 December 2024.

12. Compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as follows:

Principle

Non-
Compliant

Partially
Compliant

Fully
Compliant

Explanation in case
of non- compliance

Principle 1: The Company shall be headed by
an effective, qualified and expert board.

Yes

Principle 2: The directors and executive
management shall have full loyalty to the
company.

Yes

Principle 3: The Board shall have rigorous
controls for financial audit and reporting,
internal control, and compliance with law.

Yes

Principle 4: The Company shall have
effective procedures for appointment,
training, and evaluation of the directors

Yes

Principle 5: The Company shall remunerate
directors and senior officers fairly and
responsibly.

Yes

Principle 6: The Board shall establish a clear
and efficient management structure for the
Company and define the job titles, powers,
roles and responsibilities.

Yes

Principle 7: The Company shall communicate
with shareholders, encourage their
participation, and respect their rights.

Yes

Principle 8: The Company shall disclose its
corporate governance.

Yes

Principle 9: Companies which offer Islamic
Services shall adhere to the principles of
Islamic Shari‘a*

N/A

Principle 10: The Board shall ensure the
integrity of the financial statements
submitted to shareholders through
appointment of external auditors.

Yes

Principle 11: The Company shall seek through

social responsibility to exercise its role as a
good citizen.

Yes

* Applicable only to the companies offering Islamic Services

Please refer to the company’s disclosures on the Bahrain Bourse website.

Basim Mohamed Al Saie
Chairman of the Board

Date: 12 March 2025

13. Any disclosures required by the regulatory authorities.
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Executive
Management
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Executive Management

Mr. Ali Shawki Fakhro

Chief Commercial Officer
Date of Joining Al Matahin - April 2021

> Member of the Management Procurement
and Technical Committee

> Member of the Management HR & Admin
Committee

> Member of the Management Audit & Risk
Committee

Experience
» 2020 Managing Director - Flat6Labs Bahrain,
Manama, Bahrain

> 2006 - 2020 Deputy Chief Executive -
Mohammed Fakhroo & Bros., Manama, Bahrain

Qualifications

> Certified Management Accountant

> Master of Business Administration degree with
a concentration in Entrepreneurship from F.W.
Olin Graduate School of Business, USA

> Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
with a concentration in Finance from Babson
College, USA

Executive Management

Mr. Henry Wayne Craig

Chief Executive Officer
Date of Joining Al Matahin - April 2018

> Chairman of the Management Procurement
and Technical Committee

> Chairman of the Management HR & Admin
Committee

> Member of the Management Audit & Risk
Committee

Experience

» January 2017 - 2018 Providing Consultation in milling
and food distribution industries on a national basis
in South Africa. Also working with European snack
supplier to enter African market

> 2013 - 2016 Operations Director - Heartland Food
Limited, Durban, South Africa

> 2003 - 2013 Deputy M.D. /Operations Director -
European Oat Millers Ltd, UK

> 2002 - 2003 Operations Manager - The English
Provender Co. Ltd, UK.

Qualifications

> University of Bournemouth, UK - Master of Business
Administration (MBA)

> The Grain Milling Federation of South Africa -
Maize Milling Technology and Wheat/Flour Milling
Technology
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Independent
Auditors Report

To the Shareholders of Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BAHRAIN FLOUR MILLS COMPANY B.S.C.

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C. (the
“Company”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024,
and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including

material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting

Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Kingdom of
Bahrain, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the

matter is provided in that context.
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Government subsidy
Refer to note 2 for the Government subsidy policy and note 19 on disclosures of the
Government subsidy in the financial statements.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

The Company’s products are
subsidised by the Government
of the Kingdom of Bahrain (the
“Government”). The Government
subsidy recorded in the statement
of comprehensive income amounts
to BD 12,417,783. We considered
this as a key audit matter because
of the significance of the subsidy
amount and importance of the
subsidy to the business.

() assessing whether the subsidy
recorded by the Company is in
accordance with the memorandum
of agreement with the Government
by verifying all the inputs used in the
calculation of the subsidy;

(i) inspecting the invoices to ensure
that the Government subsidy is
claimed as per actual entitlement;

(i) agreeing the receipts of the
Government  subsidy to the
Company’s bank statements and
checking that the subsidy receivable
/ payable balance as of the reporting
date is correctly recorded;

(iv) agreeing the subsequent payment
of amount due to the Government to
the Company’s bank statement; and

(v) assessing the sufficiency and
appropriateness of the financial
statements disclosures related to
the subsidy.

Other information included in the Company’s 2024 annual report (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date
of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal
control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

Other information included in the Company’s 2024 annual report

Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2024 annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Prior to the date of this
auditors’ report, we obtained the Report of the Board of Directors which form part of
the annual report, and the remaining sections of the annual report are expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control.

+  Evaluatetheappropriatenessof accountingpoliciesused andthereasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Company’s Board
of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We report that:

a.

as required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law:
the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the financial
statements are in agreement therewith;
the financial information contained in the Report of the Board of Directors is
consistent with the financial statements; and
satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by
management in response to all our requests.

we are not aware of any violations of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, the
Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB) Rule Book (applicable provisions of Volume 6) and
the CBB directives, regulations and associated resolutions, rules and procedures of
the Bahrain Bourse or the terms of the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2024 that might have had a material
adverse effect on the business of the Company or on its financial position.

as required by Article 8 of section 2 of Chapter 10of the Bahrain Corporate Governance
Code, we report that the Company:

has appointed a Corporate Governance Officer; and

has aboard approved written guidance and procedures for corporate governance.

The Partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s reportis Prasanth
Govindapuram.

Partner’s Registration No. 212
25 February 2025
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
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Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation on right-of-use-assets
Net change in fair value of investment securities
at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income from investment securities at
amortised cost- net

Interest income from bank balances and short-term deposits

Finance costs

Charge for slow moving and obsolete inventories
Charge for expected credit losses

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Operating profit before working capital changes
Working capital changes:

Inventories

Trade receivables and other assets

Trade payables and other liabilities

Net cash used in operations

Employees' end of service benefits paid
Donation paid

Net cash flows used in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of investment securities at amortised cost
Redemption of investment securities at amortised cost
Interest income received from investment securities at
amortised cost- net

Interest income received from bank balances

and short-term deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Term loan availed - net

Repayment of import finance loans

Import finance loans availed

Amount paid to the Government

Advance received from the Government
Finance costs paid

Dividend paid

Net cash flows from financing activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

Note

a

21
23
22
18

12

12

15
15
16
16

10

The accompanying notes 1 to 30 form part of these financial statements.

2024 2023
BD BD
432,791 2,501,179
833,483 413,354
20,487 -
265,287 91,433
(433,757)  (1,734,232)
(211,168) (117,135)
(221,113) (254,381)
388,192 179,974
83,414 34,746
- 45,000
28,149 41,044
1,185,765 1,200,982
(1,339,563) 3,960,028
(10,594,308)  (13,247,824)
(325,790) 284,965
(11,073,896)  (7,801,849)
(34,938) (728)
(15,000) -
(11,123,834)  (7,802,577)
(1,447,869)  (2,142,195)
(17,262) (18,290)
(2,041,641)  (1,114,922)
758,060 -
211,002 113,855
235,443 223,454
(2,302,267)  (2,938,098)
(191,023) (57,727)
369,220 1,832,871
(10,252,003)  (9,259,374)
10,299,937 3,299,948
(2,093,634) -
13,595,956 18,982,911
(368,173) (223,687)
(620,759) (620,640)
10,739,521 13,954,302
(2,686,580) 3,213,627
7,064,161 3,850,534
4,377,581 7,064,161




Bahrain Flour Mills company B.S.C

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

tatement of cash flows * (continued)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2024

At 1 January 2024

Net profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Charity approved for 2023

Dividends for 2023

At 31 December 2024

At 1 January 2023

Net profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Charity approved for 2022

Dividends for 2022

At 31 December 2023

Recognition of new leases of BD 3,613,490 (2023: nil) has been excluded from the movement

Donated flour baskets of BD 4,262 (2023: BD 21,167) has been excluded from the movement
in right- of-use assets and lease liabilities.

in inventories.
Advance received from the Government of BD 10,682,451 (2023: BD 16,899,753) has been

Capitalisation of borrowing costs of BD 25,440 (2023: BD 77,804) has been excluded from
adjusted with the subsidy receivable.

for the year ended on 31 December 2024
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

Non-cash items:

Note

28
28

28
28

Reserves
Share Share Statutory Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total
BD BD BD BD BD BD
2,481,877 1,350,000 1,241,625 3,463,628 18,539,295 27,076,425
- - - - 432,791 432,791
- - - - (25,000) (25,000)
- - - - (620,620) (620,620)
2,481,877 1,350,000 1,241,625 3,463,628 18,326,466 26,863,596
Reserves
Share Share Statutory Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total
BD BD BD BD BD BD
2,481,877 1,350,000 1,241,625 3,463,628 16,683,756 25,220,886
- - - - 2,501,179 2,501,179
- - - - (25,000) (25,000)
- - - - (620,640) (620,640)
2,481,877 1,350,000 1,241,625 3,463,628 18,539,295 27,076,425
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND ACTIVITIES

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C. (the “Company”) is a Bahraini public shareholding company
registered with the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the Kingdom of Bahrain under
commercial registration number 1170 obtained on 16 July 1970 and listed in Bahrain Bourse. The
Company was incorporated by an Amiri Charter dated 9 May 1970 and commenced commercial
operations on 1May 1972. The Company is engaged in the production of flour and related products
which are mainly sold in the local market.

These financial statements comprise the results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company’s majority shareholder is Bahrain Food Holding Company W.L.L, which holds
65.73% of the Company’s shares (the “Parent”). The Parent is wholly owned by Bahrain Investment
Holding Company - Istithmar W.L.L, which in turn is wholly owned by Bahrain Mumtalakat Holding
Company B.S.C (c) (the “Ultimate Parent”). The Ultimate Parent is controlled by the Government
of the Kingdom of Bahrain (the “Government”).

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for fair
value measurement of investment securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS Accounting Standards”), as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and in conformity with the Bahrain Commercial Companies
Law, the Central Bank of Bahrain (“CBB") Rule Book (applicable provisions of Volume 6) and CBB
directives, regulations and associated resolutions, rules and procedures of the Bahrain Bourse.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements have been presented in Bahraini Dinars (“BD") which is the functional
currency of the Company.

New and amended standards and interpretations effective from 1January 2024

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent
with those used in the previous year, except for certain new and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Company as of 1 January 2024. The Company has not early
adopted any new and amended standards and interpretations that has been issued but is not yet
effective.

* Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback: The amendments specify
the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain
or loss that relates to the right of use it retains;

* ‘AmendmentstolAS1-Classification of Liabilities as Currentor Non-current: Theamendments
clarify: What is meant by a right to defer settlement; That a right to defer must exist at the
end of the reporting period; That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity
will exercise its deferral right; and That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible
liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification;

In addition, an entity is required to disclose when a liability arising from a loan agreement
is classified as non-current and the entity’s right to defer settlement is contingent on
compliance with future covenants within twelve months; and

*+ Amendments to IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments
Disclosures: The amendments clarify the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements
and require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in
the amendments are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the
effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure
to liquidity risk.

The adoption of these new and amended standards and interpretations did not have any effect
on the Company’s financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New and amended standards issued but not yet effective

Certain other new and amended standards have been published that are not mandatory for
31 December 2024 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. The
Company is assessing the impact of these new and amended standards and intends to adopt, if
applicable, at its effective date:

+  AmendmentstoIAS 21- Lack of exchangeability: In August 2023, the IASB issued amendments
to IAS 21. The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates to specify how an entity should
assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange
rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information
that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the currency not being
exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s financial
performance, financial position and cash flows. The amendments will be effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1January 2025. Early adoption is permitted, but will
need to be disclosed. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative
information;

* IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements: In April 2024, the IASB issued
IFRS 18, which replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. IFRS 18 introduces new
requirements for presentation within the statement of profit or loss, including specified totals
and subtotals. Furthermore, entities are required to classify all income and expenses within
the statement of profit or loss into one of five categories: operating, investing, financing,
income taxes and discontinued operations, whereof the first three are new.

It also requires disclosure of newly defined management-defined performance measures,
subtotals of income and expenses, and includes new requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of financial information based on the identified ‘roles’ of the primary financial
statements (PFS) and the notes.

In addition, narrow-scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,
which include changing the starting point for determining cash flows from operations
under the indirect method, from ‘profit or loss’ to ‘operating profit or loss’ and removing the
optionality around classification of cash flows from dividends and interest. In addition, there
are consequential amendments to several other standards. IFRS 18, and the amendments to
the other standards, are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1January 2027,
but earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively;
and

+ IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability Disclosures: In May 2024, the IASB issued
IFRS 19, which allows eligible entities to elect to apply its reduced disclosure requirements
while still applying the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements in other
IFRS accounting standards. To be eligible, at the end of the reporting period, an entity must be
a subsidiary as defined in IFRS 10, cannot have public accountability and must have a parent
(ultimate or intermediate) that prepares consolidated financial statements, available for
public use, which comply with IFRS accounting standards.

IFRS 19 will become effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New and amended standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
As the Company’s equity instruments are publicly traded, it is not eligible to elect to apply IFRS 19

Management is currently assessing the impact of the above new and amended standards on the
financial statements of the Company.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on a
current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

+ expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

* held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

+ Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

* ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments such as equity investments, at fair value at each
reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

59



60

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+ Level1— Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominatedin foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are taken to the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it), on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss
when incurred.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. If subsequent expenditure is related to
a previously capitalised project, it is depreciated over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
except for capital work-in-progress, as follows0 years

10-20 years
*  Buildings on leasehold land 10 years
* Plant and machinery 4-10 years
+ Capital spares 2to5years

*  Motor vehicles
*  Furniture and office equipment

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the
assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their fair value less
costs to sell and their value in use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each
financial year- end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work-in-progress

The capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss and comprises
expenditure incurred on the acquisition and installation of property, plant and equipment which
is transferred to the appropriate category of asset and depreciated as and when assets are
available for use.

Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated until it is transferred and put to use and is reviewed
annually for any indication of impairment.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured oninitial recognition at cost. Followinginitial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses if
any. The amortisation expense is recognised in the profit or loss in the expense category that is
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the intangible
assets, as follows: 5 years

* ERP and eCommerce platform

The carrying values of the intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss.

Leases - the Company as a lessee

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short- term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets.

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liability recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of- use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

The Company’s lease arrangements do not contain an obligation to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to a
specified condition.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liability is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for

slow moving and obsolete inventories. Costs are those expenses incurred in bringing inventories

to their present location and condition, as fRlletase cost calculated on a weighted average cost
basis.

Raw materials and consumables

+ cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable

Finished goods: overheads based on a normal level of activity.

Manufactured +  purchase cost calculated on a weighted average cost
basis.

Trading

Netrealisable valueis the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs tomanufacture and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU") fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices or other available fair
value indicators.

An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial instruments
Afinancialinstrumentis any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets
The Company'’s financial assets include investments securities, certain trade and other receivables
and bank balances, short-term deposits and cash.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), and fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them.

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient which are measured at the transaction
price determined under contracts with customers (refer to accounting policy for revenue), the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financialassets referstohowitmanagesits financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of listed and / or quoted financial assets that require delivery of assets within
a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset. All regular way purchases and sales of other financial assets are recognized on the
settlement date

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

* Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments);

*  Financial assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(debt instruments);

*  Financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments); and

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
(“EIR") method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Company'’s financial assets at amortised cost include investments in debt securities, certain
trade and other receivables and bank balances, short-term deposits and cash.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The Company’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include investments in quoted
and unquoted equity securities and a managed fund. Dividends on these investments are
recognised in profit or loss as a net change in fair value of the investments, when the right of
payment has been established.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contractandallthe cashflowsthatthe Company expectstoreceive, discounted atan approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows willinclude cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for any relevant forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:

+ therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

+ the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either;

a. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ii. Financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities, term loan, import finance loans, certain
trade and other payables and amount due to the Government.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, amortised cost, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of
those at amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;

* Financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Such
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in
hand, bank balances and short term deposits with original maturities of three months or less.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and
deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in the share premium.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIE (CONTINUED)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
aresult of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit
or loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Company provides end of service benefits to its non-Bahraini employees. The entitlement
to these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salaries and length of service. The expected
costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

The Company also makes contributions to the Social Insurance Organisation (“SIO”) for its Bahraini
employees, calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Company’s obligations are
limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to shareholders of the Company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. Under Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, a distribution is authorised when it
is approved by the shareholders in their Annual General Meeting. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

Value added tax (VAT)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax, except
when the value added tax incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
Government, in which case, the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of
the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

International tax reform - pillar two model rules - amendments to IAS 12

On1September 2024, Bahrainenacted new globalminimumtax rulesto align with the Organization
for Economic Co-operation and Development Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (“BEPS”) Pillar 2
model rules. The enacted law includes the implementation of qualified domestic minimum top-up
tax ("QDMTT").

The QDMTT is effective for years beginning on or after January 1, 2025. Bahrain has also adopted
the Transitional Country by Country Safe Harbor guidance applicable for years beginning on
or before 31 December 2026. The Transitional Country by Country Safe Harbors provide relief
from the application of the global minimum tax rules should certain criteria be met. The global
minimum tax rules are not applicable to the Company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIE (CONTINUED)

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customersis recognised when control of the goods are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods excluding value added tax etc. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the
goods before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods at the Company’s or customer’s
premises.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g.,
warranties, customer loyalty points etc). In determining the transaction price for the sale of
goods, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant
financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if any.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company'’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to the
accounting policy on “Financial assets”.

Contract liabilities

A contractliability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Government subsidy and grant

Government subsidy represents the amounts received from the Government of the Kingdom
of Bahrain through Ministry of Finance and National Economy, to enable the Company to sell
products at a controlled price as fixed by the Government. The subsidy is recorded on an accrual
basis and is calculated as the difference between the actual cost of wheat used for local sales
products plus an agreed rate per ton sold for all other related costs of flour sold locally, and the
total local sales made during the year. This subsidy is recognised as income in profit or loss in the
period in which the sales are made to customers.

In addition, the Company is entitled to an unconditional Government grant that compensates it
for specific expenses incurred. This grant is recognised as other operating income in profit or
loss in the period in which the grant becomes receivable.

Other income

Interestincome

Interest income is recorded using the EIR method, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financialinstrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
liability.

Other income
Other income is recognised on an accrual basis when income is earned.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the Board of Directors and
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the Board of Directors has made
the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

Going concern

The Company’s Board of Directors has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue the business
for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Board of Directors is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast a significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

Classification of equity investments

The Company’s management determines the classification of equity investments on initial
recognition as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” or “financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income”. The equity investments are classified as “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss” if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term
or if they are not elected by the management to be classified and measured at FVOCI. All other
investments are classified as “financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”.

Classification of debt investments

The Company’s management determines the classification of debt investments on initial
recognition as “financial assets at amortised cost”, “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” or “financial assets at fair value through other comprehensiveincome”. The debtinvestments
are classified based on the conditions mentioned in the accounting policy on “Financial assets”.

Determining the non-cancellable term of the lease - The Company as a lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised,
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Company has applied judgement in evaluating the non-cancellable period of one of its new
leases.
Refer note 6 for further details

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGJUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets

The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment right-of-use assets and intangible assets for calculating depreciation or amortisation.
This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear
and tear and in case of intangible assets the technological obsolescence. Management reviews
the residual values and useful lives annually and future depreciation or amortisation charges
would be adjusted where management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Incremental borrowing rate for leases

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses
its Incremental Borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liability. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (“CGU") fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the assets.

The Board of Directors does not believe that there is any impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets at the reporting dates.

Valuation of unquoted investments at fair value through profit or loss

Management uses its best judgement in determining fair values of the unquoted equity
investments by reference to using fair value provided by the investment managers or other
appropriate valuation techniques including fair values determined based on unobservable
inputs using market multiples or other appropriate valuation methodologies. Management uses
its best judgement, however, the actual amount realised in a future transaction may differ from
the current estimate of fair value given the inherent uncertainty surrounding the valuation of
unquoted equity investments.

At the reporting date, the Company’s investments in unquoted securities had “nil” fair value
(2023: nil). Any difference between the amounts actually collected in future periods and the
amounts expected will be recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGJUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Allowance for expected credit losses against trade receivables
The determination of allowance of expected credit losses as discussed in note 2 involves estimates

and assumptions.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with the forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e. inflation rate) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
consumer sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s
actual default in the future.

Any difference between the amounts actually collected in future periods and the amounts
expected will be recognised in profit or loss.

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old
or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts
this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant,
but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the
inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based on anticipated realisable value.

Any difference between the amounts actually realised in future periods and the amounts expected
will be recognised in profit or loss.

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings Plant,
on machinery Furniture Capital work-
leasehold  and capital Motor and office in-
land* spares Vehicles equipment  progress** Total
BD BD BD BD BD BD
Cost:
At 1 January 2024 8,667,551 7,977,508 172,958 876,926 5,285,568 22,980,511
Additions 6,440 150,259 - 3,675 1,330,197 1,490,571
Transfers in (out) 989,552 5,099,969 - 401,525 (6,604,650) (113,604)
At 31 December 2024 9,663,543 13,227,736 172,958 1,282,126 11,115 24,357,478
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2024 7,330,272 7,643,767 161,051 847,672 - 15,982,762
Depreciation for the year 284,043 502,223 2,855 44,362 - 833,483
At 31 December 2024 7,614,315 8,145,990 163,906 892,034 - 16,816,245
Net carrying values:
At 31 December 2024 2,049,228 5,081,746 9,052 390,092 11,115 7,541,233
Plant,
Buildings on machinery Furniture and
leasehold and capital Motor office  Capital work-
land* spares Vehicles equipment in-progress Total
BD BD BD BD BD BD
Cost:
At 1 January 2023 8,663,084 7,936,999 172,958 875,599 3,096,237 20,744,877
Additions 4,467 40,509 - 3,982 2,189,331 2,238,289
Disposals - - - (2,655) - (2,655)
At 31 December 2023 8,667,551 7,977,508 172,958 876,926 5,285,568 22,980,511
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2023 7,093,695 7,488,702 153,387 836,279 - 15,572,063
Depreciation for the year 236,577 155,065 7,664 14,048 - 413,354
Relating to disposals - - - (2,655) - (2,655)
At 31 December 2023 7,330,272 7,643,767 161,051 847,672 - 15,982,762
Net carrying values:
At 31 December 2023 1,337,279 333,741 11,907 29,254 5,285,568 6,997,749

The land at Mina Salman on which the current mill has been built and the Company's offices are situated is leased by the Company from the Bahrain
Defence Force for a period of 20 years till 2042.

On 1 March 2024, a new production line with a cost of 6,072,508 (2023: nil) was capitalised (transferred from capital work-in- progress). The cost
represents amount incurred towards the supply and installation of mechanical and electrical equipment including the engineering and civil work. This
production line is constructed on a leasehold land. The Company has obtained a term loan to finance the mill expansion project (refer note 13). The
borrowing costs capitalized during the year, until the new production line became operational was BD 25,440 (2023: BD 77,804).
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Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated in the statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

2024 2023

BD BD

Cost of revenue (note 18) 817,544 397,564
Other operating expenses (note 20) 15,939 15,790
833,483 413,354

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

On 1 January 2024, costs relating to a new Enterprise Resource Planning ("ERP") and eCommerce
platform were capitalized (transferred from capital work-in-progress).

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

2024 2023
BD BD
Cost:
At 1 January - -
Transferred from capital work-in-progress (note 4) 113,604 -
At 31 December 113,604 -
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January - -
Amortisation for the year (note 20) 20,487 -
At 31 December 20,487 -
Net carrying values:
At 31 December 93,117 -

6 LEASES

The Company leases warehouses and industrial lands on which its buildings and plant and equipment
are located. The Company also leased a land for the construction of a new mill in Hidd industrial area
during the year (refer below for details). Leases of land have lease terms between 20 and 24 years while
warehouses have lease terms of 3 years. Lease payments are subject to negotiation every 5 years to
reflect market rentals. No leases provide for additional rent payments that are based on changes in local
price index.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year are as
follows:

Lands plots Warehouses Total
BD BD BD
At 1 January 2024 1,154,914 50,112 1,205,026
Additions (refer note below) 3,101,970 511,520 3,613,490
Depreciation (99,145) (166,142) (265,287)
At 31 December 2024 4,157,739 395,490 4,553,229
At 1 January 2023 1,216,129 24,205 1,240,334
Addition - 56,125 56,125
Depreciation (61,215) (30,218) (91,433)
At 31 December 2023 1,154,914 50,112 1,205,026

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

6 LEASES (continued)

The addition to lease for land plots during the year relates to a new land plot for the proposed
construction of new mill. The Company has entered into certain agreements with the Ministry of
Transportation and Telecommunication (the “Ministry”), commencing from 1 October 2024 to reserve a
plot of land (the “Land”) for a rent-free period of 6 months for the purpose of carrying out preliminary
surveys and studies to assess the suitability and technical feasibility of the Land for the construction of a
new mill and if found suitable to lease it for a period of 20.5 years at an annual lease rent of BD 368,713
with certain escalation clauses. As of the reporting date, management has concluded that the Land is
suitable for the intended construction of the new mill. Accordingly, a right-of-use asset has been
recoginsed in respect of this Land.

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:

2024 2023

BD BD

At 1 January 1,251,512 1,246,884

Addition 3,613,490 56,125

Accretion of interest (note 22) 170,426 85,305

Payments (311,937) (136,802)

At 31 December 4,723,491 1,251,512
Lease liabilities disclosed in the statement of financial position is as follows:

2024 2023

BD BD

Non-current 4,496,510 1,196,722

Current 226,981 54,790

4,723,491 1,251,512

The amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

2024 2023
BD BD
Depreciation on right-of-use assets:
Cost of revenue (note 18) 28,770 28,770
Other operating expenses (note 20) 236,517 62,663
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 22) 170,426 85,305
Expense related to short-term lease and low value assets 39,000 55,440
474,713 232,178
The amount recognised in the statement of cash flows is as follows:
2024 2023
BD BD
Total cash outflows for lease liabilities (311,937) (136,802)
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7 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Non-current:
Investment securities at amortised cost

Current:
Investment securities at amortised cost
Investment securities at fair value through profit or loss

2024 2023

BD BD
3,918,414 1,889,001
- 758,060
12,992,041 12,558,284
12,992,041 13,316,344

The investment securities at amortised cost consist of unquoted debt securities while investments at fair
value through profit or loss consist of quoted equity securities and a managed fund.

Net asset value of investment securities at fair value through profit or loss at 31 December is as follows:

Equity securities

Cash

Dividend receivable

Investments receivable

Unsettled sale trades proceeds
Management fee payable and other liabilities
Unsettled buy trades proceeds

Total net asset value

Number of issued units
Net asset value per unit

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

2024 2023

BD BD

12,935,504 12,345,528

38,536 234,119
4,294 -
43,263 -

- 91,893

(29,556) (95,695)

; (17,561)

12,992,041 12,558,284

13,764,432 13,764,432

0.94 0.91

The movement in investment securities at fair value through profit or loss during the year is as follows:

At 1 January
Net change in fair value

At 31 December

The net change in fair value comprises of the following elements:

Fair value change in equity securities
Dividend income
Management fee and other expenses

2024 2023

BD BD
12,558,284 10,824,052
433,757 1,734,232
12,992,041 12,558,284
2024 2023

BD BD
318,768 1,514,151
284,301 324,028

(169,312) (103,947)
433,757 1,734,232

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

8 INVENTORIES

Wheat in silos

Packing material

Finished goods

Stores, spares and consumables

Provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories

The movement in the provision for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is as follows:

At 1 January
Charge for the year (note 18)
Write-off during the year

At 31 December

9 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

Trade receivables
Advances to suppliers
Prepayments

Interest accrued
Others

VAT receivable - net

Allowance for expected credit losses

Terms and conditions of the above financial assets are as follows:

2024 2023

BD BD
4,183,601 3,150,642
120,399 118,991
1,084,597 935,103
1,074,468 931,704
6,463,065 5,136,440
(621,602) (546,864)
5,841,463 4,589,576
2024 2023

BD BD
546,864 536,628
83,414 34,746
(8,676) (24,510)
621,602 546,864
2024 2023

BD BD
210,638 189,257
101,690 211,197
35,112 26,181
65,765 67,702
8,429 4,076
67,005 80,665
488,639 579,078

(92,000) (92,000)
396,639 487,078

- Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 to 90 day terms.
- Interest accrued is received within 30 to 180 days based on the terms of the underlying financial

instruments.
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9 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The movement in the allowance for expected credit losses is as follows:

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

2024 2023

BD BD

At 1 January 92,000 47,000
Charge for the year - 45,000
At 31 December 92.000 92.000

The ageing analysis of trade receivables and allowance for expected credit losses as at 31 December

are as follows:

Past due
Less than 91 to 180 More than
Total Current 90 days days 180 days
BD BD BD BD BD
2024
Expected credit loss rate 0.15% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Gross trade receivables 210,638 118,822 1,851 949 89,016
Expected credit losses (92,000) (184) (1,851) (949) (89,016)
Net trade receivables 118,638 118,638 - - -
Past due
Less than 91 to 180 More than
Total Current 90 days days 180 days
BD BD BD BD BD
2023
Expected credit loss rate 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Gross trade receivables 189,257 56,159 41,098 1,791 90,209
Expected credit losses (92,000) - - (1,791) (90,209)
Net trade receivables 97,257 56,159 41,098 - -
10 BANK BALANCES, SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH
2024 2023
BD BD
Cash in hand 2,069 1,057
Bank balances 801,854 846,429
Short-term deposits 3,573,658 6,216,675
4,377,581 7,064,161

- Bank balances are placed with financial institutions in the Kingdom of Bahrain in current and
saving accounts and denominated in Bahraini Dinar and US Dollar. Bank balances placed in

saving accounts earn interest at an average rate of 1% (2023: 1%).

- Short-term deposits are made with financial institutions in the Kingdom of Bahrain for a period

ranging between 30-90 days at an average interest rate of 5.5% (2023: 5.95%).

- At 31 December 2024, the Company had BD 17,788,496 (2023: BD 18,206,150) of undrawn

borrowing facilities.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

1 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
a) Share capital
2024 2023
BD BD
Authorised: 100,000,000 shares
Issued and fully paid: 24,832,500 shares of 100 fils each (2023: same) 2,483,250 2,483,250
Treasury shares 6,930 (2023: 6,930 shares) (1,373) (1,373)

Net shares in public issue

2,481,877 2,481,877

2024 2023
Performance per share at 31 December
Earnings per 100 fils share (fils) 17.43 100.75
Net asset value per 100 fils share (fils) 1,082 1,090
Stock exchange price per 100 fils share (fils) 360 341
Stock exchange price to earnings ratio 20.7 3.4
Total market capitalisation (BD) 8,939,700 8,467,883

Additional information on shareholding pattern

()

2024

(ii)

(iii)

Names and nationalities of the major shareholders who have an interest of more than 5% in the
Company and the number of equity shares held by them as at 31 December are as follows:

Nationality = No. of shares % holding
Bahrain Food Holding Company - W.L.L. Bahraini 16,322,806 65.73
Abdulhameed Zainal Mohammed Bahraini 1,848,000 8.25
Kuwait Flour Mills and Bakeries Company K.S.C. Kuwaiti 2,048,877 7.44
Bahrain Investment Holding Company -
Istithmar W.L.L. Bahraini 16,322,806 65.73
Abdulhameed Zainal Mohammed Bahraini 1,897,157 7.64
Kuwait Flour Mills and Bakeries Company K.S.C. Kuwaiti 1,848,000 7.44

The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of these shares have equal
voting rights.

Distribution schedule of equity shares, setting out the number of holders and percentage in the
following categories:

2024

Categories™ % of total
Number of Number of outstanding

shares shareholders shares

Less than 1% 4,612,817 1,753 18.58%
1% up to less than 5% - - 0.00%
5% up to less than 50% 3,896,877 2 15.69%
50% and above 16,322,806 1 65.73%
24,832,500 1,756 100.00%
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11 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

a) Share capital (continued)

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

2023
Categories* % of total
Number of Number of  outstanding
Shares shareholders shares
Less than 1% 4,517,049 1,768 18.19%
1% up to less than 5% 247,488 1 1.00%
5% up to less than 50% 3,745,157 2 15.08%
50% and above 16,322,806 1 65.73%
24,832,500 1,772 100.00%

The total number of shares above consist of treasury shares of 6,930 shares as at 31 December 2024
(2023: 6,930 shares).

*Expressed as a percentage of total shares of the Company.

b) Statutory reserve

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and the Company's articles of association, 10%
of the profit for the year is to be transferred to a statutory reserve every year. The Company may resolve
to discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve totals 50% of the issued and paid-up share
capital. In 2020, the shareholders resolved to discontinue further transfer of profit to statutory reserve as
the reserve equaled 50% of the paid-up capital of the Company.

The reserve cannot be utilised for the purpose of distribution except in such circumstances as stipulated
in the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law.

c) Other reserves

The other reserve has been made in accordance with the articles of association of the Company for
purposes to be determined by a General Meeting. This includes purposes such as the depreciation of
Company's assets, making up for any fall in the value thereof or converting in into capital. The Company
may resolve to use this reserve in the event of price fluctuation and future expansion. There are no
restrictions on the distribution of this reserve.

12 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The carrying amounts of the provision for employees’ end of service benefits and the movements during
the year are as follows:

2024 2023

BD BD

At 1 January 153,320 113,004

Charge for the year 28,149 41,044

Paid during the year to leaving employees (16,128) (728)
Paid during the year to Social Insurance Organization (18,810) -

At 31 December 146,531 153,320

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

12 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS (continued)

Effective 1 March 2024, pursuant to an Edict number 109 of 2023 issued by His Royal Highness the
Prime Minister of the Kingdom of Bahrain, certain portion of the end of service benefits liability has been
transferred to the SIO, representing the amounts paid by the Company to the SIO on a monthly basis
starting March 2024. Such portion of liability would be settled directly by the SIO when the relevant
employees leave the Company.

13 TERM LOAN

The Company has obtained a loan to finance the mill expansion project as well as other operating needs
through a repo facility arrangement with a financial institution with an aggregate limit of BD 2,250,000
(the "Facility Amount"). The Board of Directors decided to utilise the proceeds from the term loan to
finance the mill expansion project only. The loan is secured against debt securities and as per the
arrangement the value of the collateral must always exceed the Facility Amount and a minimum
collateral ratio of 1.33x or a loan-to-value ratio ("LTV") of 75% or below is required to be maintained. At
31 December 2024, the fair value of debt securities held as collateral is BD 4,002,471 (2023: BD
2,738,134). The term loan is for a three-month period with a mutual option to rollover for further periods
of three months indefinitely. The loan carries annual interest rate of 3 month SOFR plus 2% being 6.36%
per annum at 31 December 2024 (2023: 7.29% per annum). Management of the Company intends to
rollover the term loan until 2030.

14  TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2024 2023

BD BD

Trade payables 86,601 279,970
Dividends payable 54,276 54,415
Contract liabilities 60,085 57,753
Retention payables 51,615 102,557
Interest accrued 23,874 27,927
Accrued expenses and other payables 340,475 418,548
616,926 941,170

Terms and conditions of the financial liabilities are as follows:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 90 days terms.

- Dividends payable represents unclaimed dividends for which the cheques issued to the
shareholders have become stale and are payable on demand.

- Retention payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled after the completion of
respective project by the contractors.

- Interest accrued is paid within 30 to 180 days based on the terms of the underlying financial
instruments.

15  IMPORT FINANCE LOANS

2024 2023

BD BD

At 1 January 2,210,479 8,169,905
Loans availed during the year 10,299,937 3,299,948
Loans repaid during the year (10,252,003) (9,259,374)
At 31 December 2,258,413 2,210,479
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15 IMPORT FINANCE LOANS (continued)

The Company has a facility arrangement with the financial institutions with an aggregate limit of BD 20
million. Import finance loans are unsecured and are re-payable within three to six months. The loans
carry an annual interest rate of 6 month BHIBOR plus 1.5% being 7.85% per annum at 31 December
2024 (2023: 7.90% per annum). Interest cost on these loans is recovered back from the Government
through the subsidy arrangement.

16 AMOUNT DUE TO THE GOVERNMENT

The Company has entered into an arrangement with the Ministry of Finance and National Economy of
the Kingdom of Bahrain, to receive advance payment against the import of wheat. The main purpose of
such an advance payment is to support the payment of wheat shipments. As a part of the funding
mechanism, Government subsidy is adjusted against advance received from the Government and any
unadjusted balance is payable to the Government at year end.

The movement in amount due to the Government during the year is as follows:

2024 2023
BD BD
At 1 January 2,083,158 -
Advance received 13,595,956 18,982,911
Advance adjusted (11,157,063) (17,751,926)
Adjustment of finance costs 10,476 -
Payment made during the year (2,093,634) -

2,438,893 1,230,985

Subsidy payable to the Government 463,776 852,173
At 31 December 2,902,669 2,083,158
17 REVENUE

The disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers is as follows:

2024 2023
BD BD
a) Type of goods
Flour 5,029,133 5,139,534
Bran 1,344,212 1,384,361
Special products 1,156,391 1,153,330
Bulk wheat 76,164 -

7,605,900 7,677,225

b) Geographical markets

Kingdom of Bahrain 7,605,900 7,618,058
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia - 59,167

7,605,900 7,677,225

c) Timing of revenue recognition

Recorded at a point in time 7,605,900 7,677,225

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

18  COST OF REVENUE

2024 2023

BD BD

Raw material- subsidised sales (note 19) 15,707,149 19,006,915
Raw material- commercial sales 49,778 52,958
Imported flour (note 19) - 2,273,525
Landing costs on import of wheat and flour (note 19) 200,686 333,792
Staff costs 821,484 806,859
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (note 4) 817,544 397,564
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (note 6) 28,770 28,770
Packing materials and additives 315,941 322,002
Maintenance, repairs and utilities 737,847 539,973
Charge for slow moving and obsolete inventories (note 8) 83,414 34,746
Others 154,872 72,912

18,917,485 23,870,016

19 GOVERNMENT SUBSIDY

Government subsidy is available for most of the Company’s products sold locally and is calculated as the
difference between the actual cost of wheat and flour purchased and used for local sales plus
conversion cost of BD 31 per ton for flour or execution fee of BD 7.5 per ton for imported flour and a
range of BD 98 to BD 145 per ton for special products (2023: same) and the value of sales of these
products made during the year.

The following table shows the details of the Government subsidy:
2024 2023
BD BD
Actual cost of wheat used for products sold
subject to subsidy (note 18) 15,707,149 19,006,915
Actual cost of imported flour sold (note 18) - 2,273,525
Plus: landing costs on import of wheat and flour (note 18) 200,686 333,792

15,907,835 21,614,232

Plus: conversion cost per ton of wheat products sold subject
to subsidy 4,100,646 3,827,971

Plus: execution fee of BD 7.5 per ton of imported flour sold - 78,136

20,008,481 25,520,339
Gross sales subject to subsidy (7,590,698) (7,671,032)

12,417,783 17,849,307

Quantity sold during the year was 126,659 tons out of which 126,198 tons were subsidised and 461 tons
were commercial sales (2023: 128,364 tons out of which 127,940 tons were subsidised and 424 tons
were commercial sales).
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20 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2024 2023
BD BD
Staff costs 886,042 798,115
General and administrative expenses 377,432 476,303
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (note 4) 15,939 15,790
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 5) 20,487 -
Deprecation on right-of-use assets (note 6) 236,517 62,663
Board sitting fees 63,000 83,200
Board of directors' remuneration 46,815 60,000
Professional fees 39,078 28,500
1,685,310 1,524,571

21 INTEREST INCOME FROM INVESTMENT SECURITIES AT AMORTISED COST - NET

Interest income from investment securities at amortised cost consists of the following:

2024 2023
BD BD
Interest income 254,062 161,114
Management fee (42,894) (43,979)
211,168 117,135

Investment securities at amortised cost carry an average effective interest rate of 6.35% per annum
(2023: 7.4% per annum).

22  FINANCE COSTS

2024 2023
BD BD
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 6) 170,426 85,305
Interest expense on bank overdraft and import finance loans 83,801 94,669
Interest expense on term loan 133,965 -
388,192 179,974
23 OTHER INCOME
2024 2023
BD BD
Delivery income 21,522 20,912
Income from shipment claims 41,609 32,312
Interest income on bank balances and short-term deposits 221,113 254,381
Others 100,477 33,192
384,721 340,797

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

24  EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributed to ordinary
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year and is as follows:

2024 2023
Net profit for the year (BD) 432,791 2,501,179
Weighted average number of equity shares in issue 24,825,570 24,825,570
Basic and diluted earnings per share (fils) 17.43 100.75

Basic and diluted earnings per share are the same since the Company has not issued any instruments
that would have a dilutive effect.

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major shareholders (i.e. those who have control or significant influence over
the Company), key management personnel of the Company and entities controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by
the Company's management and Board of Directors.

Being an entity under the control of the Government of the Kingdom of Bahrain, the Company qualifies
as a government related entity under the definitions provided in International Accounting Standard 24
Related Party Disclosures ("IAS 24"). Accordingly, the Company considers Government departments,
ministries and other Government controlled organisations as its related parties. The Company purchases
electricity, receives subsidy against the sale of goods in the local market, receives grant against specific
expenses incurred, pays lease rentals and receives other services from various Government, semi-
Government organisations and other Government related entities in the Kingdom of Bahrain. Other than
the subsidy and grant, all such other transactions are not considered to be individually significant. All
related party transactions and balances are in the normal course of business.

Significant transactions with the Government and other related parties included in the statement of
comprehensive income are as follows:
2024 2023
BD BD
Government

Government subsidy (note 19) 12,417,783 17,849,307

Other operating income 370,449 402,044
Affiliates of Ultimate Parent

Finance costs on import finance loans 19,416 63,357
Interest income on bank balances 5,530 11,769
Other operating expenses 21,501 13,614
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

Significant balances with the Government and other related parties included in the statement of financial
position are as follows:

2024 2023
BD BD
Government
Amount due to the Government 2,902,669 2,083,158
Affiliates of Ultimate Parent
Import finance loans - 1,591,024
Accrued interest on import finance loans - 8,305
Bank balances and short-term deposits 134,617 181,128

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances with the
Government at the year-end arise in the normal course of business, are unsecured, interest-free and
settlement occurs in cash. Outstanding balances with affiliates of Ultimate Parent arise in the normal
course of business, are unsecured, carry interest at market rates and settlement occurs in cash. For the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Company has not recorded any allowance
for expected credit losses on amounts owed by related parties as management believes that these are
fully recoverable.

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company comprise of the Board of Directors and other members of
key management having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Company.

The remuneration of key management personnel included in the statement of comprehensive income
are as follows:

2024 2023
BD BD
Board of Directors:

Remuneration (note 20) 46,815 60,000
Sitting fees (note 20) 63,000 83,200
Other expenses 19,203 27,821

Other members of key management:
Salaries and short-term benefits 495,477 405,238
End of service benefits 15,648 16,510
640,143 592,769

The balances of remuneration payable to the other members of key management included in the
statement of financial position are as follows:

2024 2023

BD BD

Salaries and short-term benefits 20,480 19,326
End of service benefits 97,975 87,786
118,455 107,112

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

Introduction

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s executive management
oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s executive management advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company.
The Company’s executive management also provides assurance to the Company’s Board of
Directors that the Company’s financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies
and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance
with Company policies and Company risk appetite.

The Company’s Audit, Compliance and Risk Committee (“Audit Committee”) oversees how
management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks
faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit.
Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarised below:

Credit risk

Creditrisk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financialinstrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including
bank balances, short- term deposits and investments in debt securities.

Trade receivables

The Company trades on credit only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Company'’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with
the result that the Company’s exposure to expected credit losses is not significant. Management
believes that credit risk associated with other receivables is assessed to be low.

Animpairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
At the reporting date, the Company has recorded an allowance for expected credit losses of BD
92,000 (2023: BD 92,000).

Bank balances and short-term deposits

With respect to credit risk on bank balances and short-term deposits with financial institutions,
the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty. The Company
limits credit risk by dealing only with reputable banks.
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in debt securities

The Company limits credit risk on investments in debt securities by investing only in sovereign
debt instruments. Management regularly reviews the fair value of the securities to assess the
impairment.

Credit risk concentration

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes
in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or
geographic location.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its
customers are located in several industries and operate in largely independent markets.

The Company sells its products to a large number of wholesalers, retailers and individual customers. Its
five largest customers account for 99% of the outstanding trade receivables at 31 December 2024
(2023: 99%).

Maximum exposure to credit risk
The table below shows the maximum gross exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement
of financial position headings without taking account of any collateral and other credit enhancements.

2024 2023

BD BD

Investment securities at amortised cost 3,918,414 2,647,061
Trade receivables and other assets 184,403 164,959
Bank balances and short-term deposits 4,375,512 7,063,104

8,478,329 9,875,124

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s
objective when managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company limits its liquidity risk by ensuring adequate bank facilities are available at all times. The
Company's terms of sale requires amount to be paid in advance for walk-in customers and for corporate
customers within 60 to 90 days of the date of sale. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are
normally settled within 30 to 90 days terms.

The table below summarises the maturities of the Company’s financial liabilities at 31 December, based
on undiscounted contractual payment dates and current market interest rates.

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

Less than 3to12 1to5 More than
3 months months years 5 years Total
BD BD BD BD BD

2024
Trade payables 86,601 - - - 86,601
Dividends payable 54,276 - - - 54,276
Retention payables - 51,615 - - 51,615
Lease liabilities 82,718 248,154 1,698,695 7,080,536 9,110,103
Term loan 2,237,311 - - - 2,237,311
Import finance loans 1,727,051 568,297 - - 2,295,348
Amount due to the
Government 2,902,669 - - - 2,902,669

7,090,626 868,066 1,698,695 7,080,536 16,737,923

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

2023

Trade payables
Dividends payable
Retention payable
Lease liabilities
Term loan

Import finance loans
Amount due to the
Government

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Import finance loan
Term loan
Amount due to

the Government
Lease liabilities
Dividends payable

Import finance loan
Term loan
Amount due to

the Government
Lease liabilities
Dividends payable

Less than 3to 12 1to b More than

3 months months years 5 years Total
BD BD BD BD BD
279,970 - - - 279,970
54,415 - - - 54,415

- 102,557 - - 102,557
34,718 104,154 599,608 1,458,678 2,197,158
1,883,851 - - - 1,883,851
1,712,214 535,544 - - 2,247,758
2,083,158 - - - 2,083,158
6,048,326 742,255 599,608 1,458,678 8,848,867
At At
1 January Cash flows 31 December
2024 Receipts Payments Others 2024

BD BD BD BD BD
2,210,479 10,299,937  (10,252,003) - 2,258,413
1,832,871 369,220 - - 2,202,091
2,083,158 13,595,956 (2,093,634) (10,682,811) 2,902,669
1,251,512 - (311,937) 3,783,916 4,723,491
54,415 - (620,759) 620,620 54,276
7,432,435 24,265,113 (13,278,333)  (6,278,275) 12,140,940
At At
1 January Cash flows 31 December
2023 Receipts Payments Others 2023
BD BD BD BD BD
8,169,905 3,299,948 (9,259,374) - 2,210,479
- 1,832,871 - - 1,832,871

- 18,982,911 - (16,899,753) 2,083,158
1,246,884 - (136,802) 141,430 1,251,512
54,415 - (620,640) 620,640 54,415
9,471,204 24,115,730 (10,016,816) (16,137,683) 7,432,435
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26  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk, foreign currency risk
and equity price risk.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of statement of comprehensive income to reasonably
possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The Company's profit for the
year is affected through the impact of floating interest rates bearing import finance loans and term loan
as follows:

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

2024 2023
Increase (decrease) in basis points +100 (100) +100 (100)
(Decrease) increase in profit [in BD] (10,243) 10,243 (7,705) 7,705

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the balances related to Company's operating activities
(when revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency from the Company's functional
currency).

The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk on its financial assets and financial liabilities as
balances are denominated in Bahraini Dinar and US Dollars which is pegged to Bahraini Dinars and
hence is not considered to represent significant currency risk.

Equity price risk

The Company’s investments in quoted equity securities and a managed fund are susceptible to market
price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investments. The Company through its
investment manager, manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on
individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Company’s
senior management on a regular basis. The Company’'s Board of Directors reviews and approves all
equity investment decisions.

Management’s best estimate of the effect on profit or loss for the year due to 5% change in fair value of
investments at fair value through profit or loss, with all other variables held constant, is BD 646,775
(2023: BD 617,276).

Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders' value.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. Equity comprises of share capital,
share premium, statutory reserve, other reserves and retained earnings and is measured at BD
26,863,596 at 31 December 2024 (2023: BD 27,076,425).

27  CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Classification
The details of classification of financial assets and liabilities held by the Company at the reporting date
are as follows:

2024
Fair value
through Total
profit and Amortised carrying
loss cost value
BD BD BD
Financial assets
Investment securities 12,992,041 3,918,414 16,910,455
Trade receivables and other assets - 184,403 184,403
Bank balances, short-term deposits and cash - 4,377,581 4,377,581

12,992,041 8,480,398 21,472,439

2023
Fair value Total
through profit Amortised carrying
and loss cost value
BD BD BD
Financial assets

Investment securities 12,558,284 2,647,061 15,205,345
Trade receivables and other assets - 164,959 164,959
Bank balances, short-term deposits and cash - 7,064,161 7,064,161

12,558,284 9,876,181 22,434,465

2024 2023
BD BD

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Lease liabilities 4,723,491 1,251,512
Term loan 2,202,091 1,832,871
Trade payables and other liabilities 216,366 464,869
Import finance loans 2,258,413 2,210,479
Amount due to the Government 2,902,669 2,083,158

12,303,030 7,842,889
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27. CLASSIFICATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value of investment securities at fair value through profit or loss

Fair values of quoted equity investments and a managed fund are derived from quoted prices in
active markets. The fair values are categorized into level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. There were
no transfers between the different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the current year and
prior year.

Fair value of other financial instruments

The fair values of other financial instruments are estimated based on the following methods and

assumptions:

a. Tradeand other receivables, bank balances, short-term deposits and cash, term loan, import
finance loans, trade and other payables, and amount due to the Government approximate
their carrying amounts at the reporting date largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

b. Lease liabilities and investment securities at amortised cost are evaluated by the Company
based on parameters such as interest rates. At the reporting date, the carrying amounts are
not materially different from their fair values.

28. APPROPRIATIONS

At the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on 27 March 2024, a final cash dividend
of 25fils per share totalling BD 620,620 and charity of BD 25,000 for the year ended 31December
2023 were declared (2023: at the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders held on 28 March
2023, afinal cash dividend of 25 fils per share totalling BD 620,640 and charity of BD 25,000 for
the year ended 31December 2022 were declared).

The directors’ remuneration of BD 60,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approved
by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 27 March 2024 (2023: the directors’
remuneration of BD 60,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approved by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 28 March 2023).

29. COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2024, the Company had no capital commitments (2023: BD 771,435).

Bahrain Flour Mills Company B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2024

30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing
products or services (business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different
from those of other segment. The Company’s current activities are primarily the production
of flour and related products which are predominately sold in the local market. The revenue,
expenses and results are reviewed only at a Company level and therefore no separate operating
segment results and other disclosures are provided in the financial statements.
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